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This Annual Report has been translated into English for the convenience of international readers.
In the event of discrepancy, the ltalian version shall prevail.
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DIRECTORS’ SINGLE REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The financial year ended 31 December 2020 closed with a Group’s consolidated result of €72,878 thousand
based on the IFRS and Luigi Lavazza S.p.A’s positive result of €91,470 thousand based on Italian GAAP
(ol1c).

With reference to Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code and Article 40 of Legislative Decree No. 127(2-
bis) of 9 April 1991, the Report on Operations includes both information on the Financial Statements of
the Parent Company Luigi Lavazza S.p.A., and the Report on Operations of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Lavazza Group.

In the year just ended, in a highly complex economic and social scenario in which the Covid-19 health
emergency severely impacted world markets, the Group achieved a turnover of €2.085 billion and a
solid growth in the main markets, despite all the difficulties, tackling every challenge not only as a Global
Group but, first and foremost, as a community of people working together.

In this particularly difficult context, the Group reported the same excellent cash generation as the previ-
ous year, an exceptional figure that testifies to the effective management of the Company’s resources.
The growth — well above that of the consumer market in the At Home channel — is a measure of the
robust solidity and competitiveness of the Group that also confirmed its market share leadership in the
historically rich and vibrant coffee beans segment, which is more similar to its own commercial offer.

The achievement of excellent economic and financial results was accompanied by the continuation of
all the Research & Development investments and the launch of a well-structured environmental sustain-
ability strategy focused on circular economy and carbon neutrality, aimed at reducing the environmen-
tal impact and making a positive long-term contribution, in line with the UN Sustainable Development
Goals, particularly Goal 12 — Responsible Production and Consumption, and Goal 13 — Climate Action.

Finally, in the wake of a long history of social responsibility, which began with the Company’s foundation
in 1895, economic support in the fight against the Covid-19 pandemic continued to be provided to the
communities in which the Group operates, with the allocation of €12.5 million to the healthcare system,
schools and vulnerable groups not only in its own region, but also in the coffee-producing countries.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors

Alberto Lavazza
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Group highlights

Group'’s result for the year

The following table shows the Group’s operating and financial highlights at 31 December 2020 com-

pared with the previous year:

€ million 2020 Ratio % 2019 Ratio %
NET REVENUES 2,085.3 100.0% 21997 100.0%
EBIT 107.7 5.2% 156.0 71%
EBITDA 252.8 121% 290.6 13.2%
ADJUSTED EBITDA (BEFORE NON RECURRING ITEMS) 266.4 12.8% 300.7 13.7%
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 72.9 3.5% 127.4 5.8%
CAPEX M 157.0
NET FINANCIAL POSITION (101.7) (822)
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 2,347.0 2,391.2
HEADCOUNT AT 31/12/2020 4172 4,022
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A history made of
innovation

Over 125 years ago, in his grocery shop in Turin Luigi Lavazza invented and marketed the concept of
blending: the art of combining different coffee varieties and origins, which even today distinguishes all
of Lavazza products.

In the early decades of the 20th century, Lavazza was the first company to locally distribute coffee in
bags bearing its logo. In 1950, the Company used for the first time in Italy vacuum tins to preserve coffee
and in 1971 the first flexible vacuum brick pack. In 1989, Lavazza was also the first brand to introduce
multiple coffee packs.

In the same year, it entered the portioned coffee market, becoming the first Italian company to produce
and market capsule-based espresso systems. Thanks to ongoing collaborations with an international
network of universities and scientific institutes, Lavazza now has different platforms in the portioned
coffee segment.

Innovation has always been closely intertwined to research, and the Company is known as an organi-
sation with a “continuous innovation cycle”, ranging from the art of blending to vacuum-packed coffee,
from portioned to decaffeinated coffee and the ISSpresso machine — developed alongside the Italian
aerospace engineering firm Argotec (in a public-private partnership with the Italian Space Agency) —
capable of functioning in the extreme conditions of space.

This constant passion for quality led the company in 1979 to found the Luigi Lavazza Centre for Coffee
Studies and Research, dedicated to analysis and in-depth study of espresso and the spread of espresso
culture. This then evolved into the Lavazza Training Center, an international network of over 50 coffee
schools throughout the world, where 30,000 people are trained each year.

Constant innovation is also essential when it comes to the significant industrial investments in recent
years that have made the Group more efficient, flexible and nimble in responding to a constantly evolv-
ing market.

Among the first 100 brands in the world by reputation according to the Reputation Institute, Lavazza
has been able to develop its brand awareness through important partnerships perfectly in tune with
its brand internationalisation strategy, such as those in the world of sport with the Grand Slam tennis
tournaments, and those in the fields of art and culture with prestigious museums like New York’s Gug-
genheim Museum, Milan Triennale and The Hermitage State Museum in St. Petersburg, Russia.
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A multibrand Group

The Lavazza Group is among the major players in the global coffee arena, with a portfolio of leading
brands on reference markets such as Lavazza, Carte Noire, Merrild and Kicking Horse.

It operates in 140 markets — across all business segments — with 9 production plants in 6 countries and
over 4,000 employees worldwide.

A global presence that is the result of a growth path that has lasted for over 120 years, as well as of
investments in research and innovation, with a constant focus on sustainability. Over 30 billion cups of
coffee produced every year bear witness today to a great success story.

Each year Lavazza purchases more than 200,000 tonnes of coffee of over 100 different varieties. The
selected coffee roasting and grinding methods are aimed at enhancing the nuances of taste and aroma
characterising each origin.

In the development of services and products, including both coffee and machines, pertaining to all
brands, the utmost attention is devoted to quality, which is ensured through strict controls at every
phase of the process, from supplier selection to production. Each new blend or single origin is also
tasted personally by members of the Lavazza family, who evaluate it with the knowledge and experience
gained in over 120 years of coffee production. Only after their approval and a thorough production,
control and packing process, are they ready to be sold and offer that extraordinary taste experience that
distinguishes all the Group’s products.

LAVATIR

—  GROUP—/—
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Brands

The Group brings together the global Lavazza brand with the brands Carte Noire, Kicking Horse and
Merrild, each a market-leader in its country, all united by a focus on quality, yet quite distinct in terms of
characteristics and personality.

Lavazza

Lavazza — the Group’s global brand — is synonymous with authentic Italian coffee around the world.
Lavazza is a consolidated, historic leader in Italy’s retail chains, where it is present in all business seg-
ments — At Home, Away from Home and OCS — with dedicated products and solutions. It can also count
on excellent brand awareness and reputation in all the most strategically important markets, also thanks
to its constant commitment to sustainability.

A communication innovator, over the years the Lavazza brand has also built its global identity through
partnerships in the areas of top gastronomy, sport and culture.

The brand evokes sustainability, taste and wellbeing, and offers experiences that go well beyond the
pleasure of an excellent espresso.

Carte Noire

Carte Noire, an icon of the French art of coffee, is the leading retail coffee brand in France, well known
since its foundation for its extremely high-quality coffee. Thanks to the vision of its founder, René Monni-
er, since 1978 Carte Noire has stood out for its refined blends and for being the first player in the French
market to offer 100% Arabica products. In a country famous for appreciating the quality of wine and
cuisine, René Monnier succeeded in doing the same with coffee, thanks to innovative communication
inspired by cinema. Today, Carte Noire is the number-one brand by penetration, reputation and image
in the French coffee market. It is a perfect brand for the Lavazza Group, of which it has been part since
2016.

Kicking Horse Coffee

Kicking Horse Coffee was founded in 1996 in Invermere (British Columbia), in the Canadian Rocky Moun-
tains, where founders Elana Rosenfeld and Leo Johnson dreamed of creating an innovative coffee roast-
ing company and took an artisanal approach, experimenting with the art of roasting and blending coffee
grown according to strictly natural methods. Over time, the brand focused increasingly on organic fair
trade coffee, and today all its products are certified 100% organic and fair trade.

Kicking Horse is currently the leader in the North American organic coffee sector and has been recog-
nised in Canada as the most trusted brand according to the Gustavson Brand Trust index 2019. It joined
the Lavazza Group in 2017.

Merrild

Merrild was founded in Denmark as a result of the passion of Mgller Merrild, an entrepreneur who in
1964 opened a small coffee roasting company in Fredericia, a small Dutch municipality on the shore of
the North Sea, driven by a desire to improve the coffee blends available on the market. His research
resulted in the development of high-quality recipes with unmistakable flavour — some of which remain
unchanged to these days — propelling the brand’s growth into a leader of the coffee market in Denmark
and the Baltics. This prominent role is also reflected in the brand’s intense social sustainability activity.
In line with the Lavazza Group's focus on quality, Merrild joined it in 2015.
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Business segments

The Lavazza Group’s wide offering, dedicated to both At Home and Away From Home consumption, is
distributed across all sales channels: Retail, Foodservice, Office Coffee Service (OCS) and Vending. This
strong presence makes available to all consumers and customers the most suitable solutions on every
occasion, in every moment of the day.

RETAIL

Within the At Home consumption channel, the Lavazza Group has a very strong position in a number of
key markets such as Italy (under the Lavazza brand), France (under the Carte Noire brand), Denmark and
the Baltics (under the Merrild brand) and Canada (under the Kicking Horse brand). The range, differen-
tiated by country, includes whole bean and ground coffee products — for espresso, moka coffee pot
and filter systems — pods, instant coffee, ready-to-drink beverages and capsules for the world's most
common home systems, suited to meeting every consumer’s taste requirements.

In addition to a broad presence in mass retail and specialist stores, the Group also markets its At Home
products through Nims, which joined the Group in 2017 and offers its customers direct door-to-door sale
of coffee products and prompt, timely warranty and support service, thanks to a network of personal
coffee shoppers who create a direct relationship of trust with their customers.

Finally, Group brand products can also be purchased online, through an advanced e-commerce platform
including the direct shops of proprietary sites, a presence on marketplaces and on the major retailers’
online channels.

FOODSERVICE

Hotels, Restaurants, Cafés (HO.RE.CA)

The Lavazza Group's range of products for this channel provides sector professionals dedicated, tai-
lor-made products and solutions for all service modes and types of coffee preparation.

Quality in every cup is ensured making available a vast selection of professional machines, specific
service materials and communication materials, which allow to leverage all aspects of the coffee ritual.
The Lavazza Training Center provides day-to-day support to clients in their activities through training
programmes focusing on theory and operational consulting, directly on site, provided by a team of
specialists who operate according to the international standards of excellence set by the SCA (Specialty
Coffee Association).

In addition to coffee, the range is rounded out by complementary products such as hot chocolate, gin-
seng and barley beverages, tea, infusions and granitas.

Retailing

In this channel, the Lavazza brand has proprietary and franchised stores, through which it establishes a
direct relationship with the consumer.

The first Lavazza Flagship Store was inaugurated in Milan in 2017. A point of sale was also opened in
Shanghai in early 2020, with a subsequent development plan, in partnership with Yum China: a key
market on which coffee consumption has considerable potential.

Lavazza Flagship Stores' offer is structured around an immersive, complete experience of the product,
which is celebrated in all its forms, from the most traditional, such as espresso, to the most surprising
aspects of coffee design.
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OFFICE COFFEE SERVICE (OCS) AND VENDING

In order to ensure that consumers enjoy an excellent cup of coffee everywhere, Lavazza has developed
a specific range for the various consumption occasions.

Drawing on more than 30 years of experience with capsule-based systems and vending machines, in re-
cent years the Lavazza Group has strengthened its presence in the B2B market by acquiring the French
ESP (Espresso Service Proximité), the Australian Blue Pod and the Lavazza Professional business, which
operates on numerous key markets for the Group: the USA, the United Kingdom, France, Germany and
Japan. This is a business that requires great technological and service skills, in order to provide its con-
sumers with an excellent cup of coffee anywhere.

Office Coffee Service (OCS)

Very special attention and care is paid to workplaces, offices in particular, with an offer that includes a
wide range of coffee capsules and other beverages that can offer all consumers their favourite product
every day, as well as a range of manual-use designer coffee machines suitable for any environment.
Cutting-edge systems such as the following are dedicated to this channel: Lavazza Firma, whose highly
qualified supply and assistance service makes it possible to offer all the café-like variety also in the
office; Flavia, by Lavazza Professional, featuring the characteristic Freshpack technology, designed to
prevent cross-contamination between brews, whose innovative Odyssey 600 coffee machine with the
Odyssey Cold module can dispense both hot and cold beverages and frothed fresh milk; and Lavazza
Expert, designed for the North American market, which offers espresso, filter coffee and milk-based
beverages. The supply and support service is offered by a network of highly selected partners. A rich,
varied range suited to offices of all sizes, regardless of the number of employees.

Vending

Airports, stations, universities, factories, big companies, hospitals: however large the space or however
high the footfall, the Lavazza Group can ensure the availability of its products anywhere.

In-cup quality is guaranteed by the use of free-standing and table-top vending machines capable of
enhancing the sensory characteristics of a wide range of blends specifically developed for this channel.
The range is rounded out by a dedicated line of whole-bean products with distinctive traits. The Group
offers a wide range of products and services for this channel under the Lavazza BLUE brand and, for
Lavazza Professional, under the Klix brand, which has become a benchmark in sustainability through its
Eco Cups, fully recyclable and compostable paper cups which reduce the environmental impact by over
63% compared to the coffee machines that use plastic cups.
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General performance and
market scenario

In 2020, the global economy shrank for the first time since 2009 as a result of the measures taken in the
main countries to contain the Covid-19 pandemic. The health emergency slowed economic activity for
most of the first half of the year and — albeit to a less pronounced, more localised extent — in the final
three months of the year.

It is estimated that the effort by the fiscal authorities to contain the impact of the lockdowns exceeded
USD 10,000 billion in 2020, consisting of loan guarantees, direct grants to households and companies
and investments, above all in the healthcare. At the same time, central banks lowered their interest rates
to all-time lows and announced new bond purchasing programmes — or increased the existing ones —
as well as the supply of liquidity to the financial system.

The US political programme launched by the recently elected President Biden calls for a massive public
investment plan designed to ensure a transition to renewable energy sources and a greater focus on
social issues and inequality, including through an increase in corporate income taxes.

In Europe, the crisis led to an historic decision: the creation of the €750 billion Next Generation EU fund
to be focused on public investments aimed above all at the energy transition and digitalisation of the
economy in support of the recovery. For the first time in the European Union’s history, the plan calls for
the transfer of financial resources from "virtuous" countries such as Germany to peripheral countries
such as Spain and ltaly, given that it is financed by bonds issued directly by the EU. Equally historic was
the conclusion of the process of departure of the United Kingdom from the Union, implemented through
a last-minute agreement that made effective the outcome of the June 2016 referendum.

China was the first country to be forced to implement severe pandemic containment measures as early
as January 2020, thus recording, in the first quarter, its first annual decline in GDP since the introduction
of national accounting in 1992. Italy suffered from the pandemic crisis more than other countries as it
was the first Western country to have to confront it as early as February and due to the importance of
tourism to the structure of its economy. In the second half of the year, the recovery of foreign demand
and the reopening of businesses — at least in the third quarter — facilitated an economic recovery,
which was however insufficient to prevent a decline in GDP for the full-year 2020, which was greater
than those of 2009 and 2012-2013.



DIRECTORS’ SINGLE REPORT ON OPERATIONS




LAVAZZA GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Industry overview

Group positioning

At Home business

In the context of the Covid-19 pandemic emergency, the domestic food consumer goods segment has
experienced an expected acceleration in average value global growth of almost 3 percentage points
compared to pre-Covid growth (up from 4.7% to 7.4%), rising at different rates according to the geo-
graphical area and the degree to which Covid-19 has impacted the country (Food & Beverage Sector
Report, November 2020, Edge by Ascential Retail Insight).

In fact, from March the more or less generalised lockdown scenarios favoured a shift in consumption
from the away-from-home channels to the retail channel with consumers forced to change their habits
by focusing mainly on consumption occasions at their home.

Growth was therefore driven by the increase in at home consumption, but also by temporary stockpiling
by consumers due to a fear of repercussions for supplies, particularly during the harshest confinement
period, with reduced promotional dynamics that favoured the value strategies.

The coffee retail market rose by 8% compared to 2019 in Lavazza's 15 major reference geographies
(there had been a slight downturn in 2019), with the Lavazza brand outperforming the market trend in all
the segments with double-digit growth due particularly to the beans and portioned segments that were
5-10 further points higher than the growth trend in the reference segments.

From a competitive point of view, the coffee category is experiencing strong pressure with the entry and/
or globalisation of players that are driving a growth phenomenon in the premium segments, especially
in portioned coffee, with sustained growth of products with a higher price positioning. At the same time,
the dynamics in the multi-serve segments of the more mature geographies are instead impacted by
continual promotion and competitive pressure for the defence of market shares. Lavazza benefits from
its premium positioning and offering in numerous expanding markets, especially in the segments most
covered by the brand offer, defending its own competitive position in the main geographies and also
working on its portfolio's value levers.

Lavazza is growing with its brands in all the geographies with more moderate growth in the consolidat-
ed geographies (ltaly, France and Denmark), whilst all the other ones show higher and very sustained
growth driven partly by the effect of Covid-19 on the market, and partly also by the growth in the share of
the Lavazza brand due especially to increases in terms of distribution and mix with considerable peaks
in North America, Germany and Eastern Europe.

The pandemic has been a factor for sharp acceleration also for at-home consumption, with products
delivered through the e-commerce channel given the restrictions on movement imposed in the vari-
ous countries that have favoured online purchases. The absence of direct contact with other people
throughout the buying process has given the perception that the online experience is more secure. New
customers approached online purchasing for the first time and it is estimated that, for 35/40% of them,
the move from traditional to online channels is permanent.

Different studies indicate that in the main markets (US, ITA, DE, FR, UK) the rate of penetration of online
purchases of FMCG has doubled compared to pre-Covid rates. The greatest growth was reported in the
home delivery and click&collect services offered by the traditional retailers who, in the first phase of the
pandemic, were unable to satisfy demand completely.

In this context, Lavazza’s e-commerce channel reported growth in line with the aforesaid acceleration
in the main geographies, and even above the benchmarks in countries such as the US and the UK. To
further strengthen the channel’s growth and in addition to the initiatives to increase the channel’s cov-
erage already implemented/planned, the first few months of the year saw a further increase in online
investment in terms of visibility, and promotional activities intensified particularly in the online platforms
of the traditional retailers, as well as on the proprietary channels.
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Away from Home business

Food Service (Ho.Re.Ca.)

Up to February, the channel started off well in a context of away-from-home consumption growth con-
sistent with previous years’ trends, but, from March, it was severely impacted by the effects of the pan-
demic. The various governments adopted a variety of restrictive measures during the year to contain the
spread of the virus: the various directives put in place led the Ho.Re.Ca. world to two extremely challeng-
ing phases: the spring — with the most critical period between mid-March and mid-May — and the last
few months of the year, with a temporary recovery in mid-summer primarily in the European countries
(this was not the case of the United States and Australia, which had different dynamics).

The restrictions implemented generated different impacts among the various Ho.Re.Ca. segments:

- Strong decline in the traffic recorded in cafés and restaurants, with decreases that, compared to the
pre-Covid period, ranged in April from -60% in Germany to -90% in Italy, from -88% in France to -80%
in the United Kingdom. However, the sector benefitted from a recovery during summer, temporarily
driving the traffic in cafés and restaurants in Italy and France back to almost pre-Covid levels. A new
wave of restrictive measures in autumn entailed an interruption of this uptrend;

- Hotels as well witnessed a difficult context with reservations at global level in general decline com-
pared to the previous year, especially during spring (April: -87%) and the end of year (October-No-
vember: -50%). According to the UNWTO (United Nations World Tourism Organisation), global hotel
occupancy rate, which in 2019 stood at 70% on average, reached its low in April (22%), recovering in
summer (45%) and decreasing once again in the last months of the year (40%);

- The travel sector suffered the heaviest repercussions, with an almost two-third decline of global air
traffic between March and April compared to the pre-Covid-19 period. The summer recovery proved
slow, as a result of the decrease in tourist flows that remained at very low levels for most part of
the year, except for the summer period: said flows dropped between 70% and 80% at global level in
2020 (UNWTO).

The coffee consumption trend in the Food Service channel was in line with the general consumption
trends throughout the channel as a result of the pandemic. The analysis of the countries served by
Lavazza shows a strong correlation between the performance of the business units and the penetration
level in the different segments of the local Ho.Re.Ca. market.

The most impacted geographies include: the USA due to the concentration of the business in the geo-
graphical areas and exposure to segments most affected by the pandemic; Italy and France, both with
a sharp contraction between March and May and a good recovery in the first half of August driven by
the relaxing of restrictions and partial recovery of domestic tourism flows, followed by the restrictions
in the last quarter.

The least negatively impacted markets compared to the Group average include Eastern Europe and
Middle East countries, which reported more moderate declines due to a slower initial spread of the
virus compared to Western European countries and distribution activities that improved market share
on previous years, as well as Asia, which saw China and Korea resuming activities as early as the end
of second quarter 2020.

In this market context, management focused its attention mainly on making the business secure, trying
to reduce the pandemic’s impact on the channel (through human resource and financial/credit manage-
ment initiatives and support with customer activation during the restart phases) and plan initiatives with
a medium/long-term strategic vision so as to ensure a full restart for the channel in a post-pandemic
recovery scenario, which is expected to have a major impact also in the first half of 2021.
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OCS/Vending

The consumption trend in the OCS/Vending channel is closely linked to hours worked, namely people’s
presence in the workplace such as production sites, offices and businesses and their travel between
home and work. During 2020, this parameter was severely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, since
the remote working phenomenon significantly changed the working and commuting habits of white
collar workers, whilst the production plants, on the other hand, were impacted (albeit to a lesser extent)
by absenteeism and selective closures. Consumption in the channel was also affected by the pandemic’s
major impact on the Travel and Tourism sector, albeit to a lesser extent than the hours worked factor.

Some geographical areas were impacted heavier than others due to their social and demographical fea-
tures and the emergency management policies implemented: for instance, during the first wave of the
pandemic the Italian market reported an approximately -50% figure compared to the previous year, and
France -65%, while, with regard to the rest of the continental Europe, the United Kingdom about -60%
and Germany about -45%. The overall figure for the year has thus to be construed in light of a global mar-
ket context that saw a consumption decline compared to the previous year, with a greater impact during
March-April and May, and from October until the end of the year consistent with the stricter restrictive
measures adopted in this period.

The Group’s performance in the mature markets (Italy and France) reflected market trends with Italy
impacted less in terms of channel performance than other countries due to the turnover generated in
the channel also with business lines with mainly domestic/SOHO features and to its presence in sectors
impacted only slightly (production plants and healthcare structures). The Group also outperformed the
market, albeit still in decline, in expanding geographies, especially in Central Europe, the Middle East
and Africa thanks to distribution initiatives.

Lavazza Professional in Europe, operating primarily with the Klix system in the UK, Germany and France,
performed better than the market on average, given the preponderant presence in the blue-collar sec-
tors (less impacted by the restrictions imposed to contain the pandemic).

The performance of Lavazza Professional North America was strongly impacted compared to the previ-
ous year due to its greater exposure to white-collar environments and the pandemic’s major impact also
in the summer and early autumn period compared to the European situation.
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Significant events in the year

The Covid-19 pandemic that broke out at the beginning of the year has put under severe strain the real
economy and financial markets of all the most economically developed countries. The economies of the
countries affected by the pandemic crisis have reported a sharp decline in the main macroeconomic in-
dicators, with heavy repercussions for the financial statements of companies in almost all the economic
sectors.

After a brilliant start to the year for all the channels, the Group had to face the consequences of the
restrictions imposed worldwide to contain the spread of the “first wave” of the virus, which resulted
in a rapid deterioration in the socio-economic and financial situation at global level, with a consequent
negative impact on all the markets in which the Group operates.

The channels most affected are those relating to the away-from-home consumption in the following
sectors: Food Service and Ho.Re.Ca due to the closure of commercial establishments gradually imposed
by the various governments, and OCS/Vending, the volumes of which are directly linked to the presence
of employees in offices — a presence that in many countries dropped to zero during the second quarter
to then increase slightly in the second half of the year, but without ever reaching the previous levels.

Aware that the health crisis would soon turn into a financial crisis, the Lavazza Group immediately turned
to its customers in the sectors most impacted by the pandemic in order to agree with them the most
effective tools and support measures to ensure business continuity.

In particular, in Italy, in the face of the sudden rise in Coronavirus (Covid-19) cases confirmed and official-
ly communicated by the Ministry of Health and subsequent Regional and Municipal Ordinances, and in
order to manage the emergency situation, as early as the end of February the Group set up a Committee
for managing the Coronavirus emergency that involved various company functions.

The Committee set itself the objective of putting in place and verifying the implementation of all the
measures required to safeguard the health of employees and those who for various reasons have pro-
fessional relationships with the Company, in accordance with the current provisions issued by the Minis-
try of Health in agreement with the local authorities (Regional and Municipal Ordinances).

During the year, the Committee, in its periodic meetings, analysed the pandemic’s development from
time to time, promptly recorded the confirmed cases of employees who had contracted the disease and
issued instructions to all the Group’s employees to contain its spread.

All previously planned corporate events were cancelled and all travels were banned for all the Group’s
employees, who were immediately allowed to work for the whole working week on a remote working
basis. Workers employed in the production plants were immediately provided with all the personal pro-
tection equipment so that they could continue working on the production activity in complete safety
within a controlled and sanitised work environment.

Between the third quarter and the end of the year, employed staff started to make a gradual return to
offices on all the Company’s sites, which underwent further intensified cleaning and hygiene measures
for surfaces and work spaces, whilst remote communication systems continued to be used to enable
collaboration with customers and suppliers.

Similar actions to safeguard employees were taken in the various countries in which the Lavazza Group
operates depending on developments in the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Lavazza Group has never stopped in this extremely volatile and uncertain context and has continued
to invest in all its activities, giving a positive signal in the fight against the pandemic through donations
to support the local communities in which the Group operates, aware of the need to work together on
three priorities: people’s health and safety, business continuity and future development.
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During the year, the Lavazza Group consolidated its international presence and focus on the new gener-
ations so as to enhance the brand and support future growth.

In Europe, it expanded the distribution of the Lavazza-branded ready-to-drink coffee products in Germa-
ny, France and Spain thanks to the partnership with Pepsi.

On the Asian continent, the Group consolidated its international presence, entering the Chinese market
through a joint venture with Yum China, the local leader in the retailing channel, created to explore and
develop the Lavazza Coffee Shop concept in the country. The first flagship store was opened in Shanghai
in January 2020. To date the Group opened a further 4 stores in China.

“1895 Coffee Designers”, Lavazza’s new brand and new factory-museum, was launched during the year.
In fact, an innovative autonomous-energy experiential industrial centre (with a zero emissions target by
2030) has been built inside the Turin production plant, where visitors can discover, in real time, how
excellent espresso is created along the “Factory 1895” pathway, designed by Ralph Appelbaum Associ-
ates, which was responsible for the visual design, storytelling, immersive projections and tasting area.
The centre offers the opportunity to discover all the phases involved in producing the perfect espresso:
from the arrival of the green coffee and the rigorous analysis processes based on international cata-
loguing that take account of as many as sixteen types of green coffee defects, to the single roasting to
enhance its main aromatic note, using the best roasters available on the market that consume 30% less
energy and roast only 12 to 120 kilograms of coffee per cycle.

Real estate

The Covid-19 emergency essentially blocked most of the real estate projects planned for the year.

The work spaces were adapted to the new social distancing requirements and maximum attention was
paid to employee health and safety with continuous sanitisation, a drastic reduction in people working
in the office and widespread home working, limiting the use of meeting rooms and communal spaces
and adapting restaurant spaces.

The Lavazza Museum closed its doors temporarily following various ministerial decrees, along with the
events space and convention centre, which made extensive use of webinars and virtual meetings.

The Piazza Lavazza was also closed to the public for safety reasons and to avoid the risk of crowding,
whilst the Bistrot restaurant was temporarily converted back to a “Company canteen” used only by
Lavazza employees.

The end of the year saw the completion of the full restyling of the building that houses the Engineer-
ing offices in the Turin Plant complex, with new interior design, new technologies, new air conditioning

plant and a new ventilated facade with thermal break.

Finally, the warehouse, located in Sintra, Portugal, which had not been used for some time, was sold.

China

Factory
1895


https://www.vogue.it/tags/lavazza
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Industrial investments

Industrial investments at Italian plants slightly decreased compared to the previous year, chiefly due to
the review of the expenditure forecast for the compostable capsule project.

Investments were made at the Gattinara plant for the portioned products area, for the transition to com-
postable polymer capsules on the BLUE production lines, particularly with regard to the thermoforming,
filling and sealing operations. In addition, in the Roast & Ground area, the investment on increasing the
production capacity of coffee products in the 1kg whole-bean format was completed.

At the Turin plant work started on constructing a new production line for compatible capsules, whilst the
Roast & Ground sector worked on increasing flexibility and production efficiency linked to the roasting
process and the 1kg whole-bean packaging section, through the modernisation and rationalisation of
the palletisation systems.

As in previous years, both the plants saw the continuation of the investment activity aimed at protecting
the environment and increasing workplace safety.
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Financial performance of
the Lavazza Group

In 2020, within a highly complex economic and social scenario which saw the global markets severely hit
by the Covid-19 health emergency, the Group reached robust results, outperforming the market average
both in the retail channel and in the main geographical areas.

Economic indicators showed a slight decrease in revenues, a cash generation substantially in line with
2019 and a positive net financial position.

The results confirmed the effectiveness of the business model and the strategy that have allowed the
Company to grow even in a shrinking market context and that looks at the future by investing in and
focusing on innovation and sustainability.
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Consolidated operating,
capital and financial
situation of the

Lavazza Group

Reclassified statement of profit or loss*

€ million Year 2020 Ratio % Year 2019 Ratio % Change % change
Net revenues 2,085.3 100.0% 2,199.7 100.0% (114.4) (5.2%)
Cost of sales (1,264.9) (60.7%) (1,299.2) (59.1%) 34.3 (2.6%)
GROSS PROFIT 820.4 39.3% 900.5 40.9% (80.1) (8.9%)
Promotional and advertising costs (185.3) (8.9%) (205.0) (9.3%) 19.7 (9.6%)
Selling costs (177.9) (8.5%) (192.7) (8.8%) 14.8 (7.7%)
General and administrative expenses (275.9) (13.2%) (284.5) (12.9%) 8.6 (3.0%)
Research and development costs (15.0) (0.7%) (17.4) (0.8%) 2.4 (13.8%)
Other operating income (expense) (44.) (2.1%) (34.8) (1.6%) (9.3) 26.7%
Non-recurring income (expense) (13.6) (0.7%) (10.1) (0.5%) (3.5) 34.7%
Income (losses) for investments in JVs (0.9) 0.0% - 0.0% (0.9) 0.0%
EBIT 107.7 5.2% 156.0 71% (48.3) (31.0%)
Of which amortisation and depreciation (145.1) (7.0%) (134.6) (6.1%) (10.5) 7.8%
Of which EBITDA 252.8 12.1% 290.6 13.2% (37.8) (13.0%)
Financial income (expense) (18.7) (0.9%) (0.3) 0.0% (18.4) 6,133.3%
Dividends 0.1 0.0% 0.1 0.0% - 0.0%
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 89.1 4.3% 155.8 71% (66.7) (42.8%)
Income taxes for the year (16.2) (0.8%) (28.4) (1.3%) 12.2 (43.0%)
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 72.9 3.5% 127.4 5.8% (54.5) (42.8%)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 72.9 3.5% 127.4 5.8% (54.5) (42.8%)
PROFIT/(L ATTRIBUTABLE T

NO(I)\I-Cé(N(?:g)LLING INl{rERESTSo 0-5 0.0% 08 0.0% 03) (37.5%)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 72.4 3.5% 126.6 5.8% (54.2) (42.8%)

*Some figures relating to the comparison period have been reclassified in order to facilitate data comparability

Consolidated net revenues amounted to €2.1 billion, down 5.2% from €2.2 billion for the previous year.
Following a very positive performance in the first two months of the year, beginning from March sales
were impacted by the effects of the pandemic; the main critical issues were observed between March
and May 2020 and during the last two months of the year. The sharp decline of the Away From Home
business (Food Service -40%; Office Coffee Service -30%), caused by travel restrictions, the closure of
cafés and restaurants and the lower consumption at offices due to remote working, was partially offset
by the rise in the retail channel, which closed 2020 with a 17.3% growth rate compared to 2019.

The downtrend of the Away From Home sector is attributable to an extraordinary and unpredictable
negative situation.
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The retail channel's revenues grew by 17.3%, well above the market average in key countries and across
all segments (R&G, Capsule, Beans). In particular, the Beans segment — the most dynamic one within the
sector — confirmed its positive performance, with a significantly +30.1% increase, or 10 points above the
reference market figure. Considering the Group's 15 key markets, the Lavazza Group positioned itself as
a leader in the Beans segment, with a 15.1% share by value.

At geographical level as well, the Group reported excellent growth rates in the retail channel in Germany
(+35%), the United States (+22%), the United Kingdom (+15%), Russia (+30%), Poland (+10%), whilst the
key Group markets — Italy and France — rose by over 7%.

The end of 2020 saw Lavazza, as part of its Roadmap to Zero project that will lead the Group to become
completely carbon neutral by 2030, achieve the important target of zeroing the direct CO2 emissions
generated by all the company’s activities, such as production plants, offices, flagship stores, company
vehicles (scope 1), and indirect emissions generated by electricity, heat and steam purchased and con-
sumed (scope 2).

Finally, the Lavazza Group is confirmed as one of the Top Italian Employers in 2021 as well, thanks to a
process of continuous improvement with people at the centre, and the constant search for excellence in
the processes and strategies linked to human resource management.

The Lavazza Group's EBITDA was €252.8 million, down 13% compared to €290.6 million for the previous
year; EBITDA margin was 12.1% (13.2% in 2019).

Excluding the costs relating to donations made within the context of the Covid-19 health emergency
(€12.5 million), EBITDA amounted to €265.3 million, down 8.7% compared to the EBITDA reported in the
previous year (€290.6 million).

EBIT amounted to €107.7 million, down by 31% compared to €156.0 million for 2019, with EBIT margin
0f 5.2% (7.1% in 2019).
Net profit amounted to €72.9 million, down 42.8 % compared to €127.4 million for 2019.

Sales performance

Group’s revenues in the retail channel (+17.3%) showed very positive growth rates across both the seg-
ments and the geographical areas. In particular, Germany rose by +33%, North America by +47%, Aus-
tralia by +27%, Canada by +28.5%, the United Kingdom by +22%, Eastern Europe by +28%, and Denmark
by +11%. The key markets of the Group — Italy and France — rose by over 6%.

These performances were also confirmed by market figures, which saw Lavazza grow well above the
market average in key markets and across all segments — Roast&Ground, Capsule, Beans—. In particu-
lar, the Beans segment — the most dynamic one within the sector — confirmed its positive performance,
with a +30.1% increase, 10 points above the reference market figure (+20.1%).

In the Group's 15 most important markets, the Lavazza Group positioned itself as a leader in said seg-
ment, with a 15.1% share by value.

In the Away From Home channels, the Group’s sales decreased by approximately 33%. In particular,
Lavazza Professional companies operating in Europe closed 2020 with a -22% turnover drop compared
to 2019.

The Covid-19 impact, though it proved significant, was limited by the fact that their main business —
Vending — was impacted to a lower extent than the office sector. Lavazza Professional North America
reported instead a very negative performance (-66%) compared to 2019 due to the drastic reduction in
people working in offices, a sector representing the core business of the US subsidiary.

+17.3%
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Capital and financial situation

Reclassified statement of financial position

€ million 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 Changes
Inventories 405 369 36
Trade receivables 243 307 (64)
Trade payables (330) (368) 38
Other assets (liabilities) (31) (15) (16)
Total net working capital 287 293 (6)
Property, plant and equipment 586 610 (24)
Intangible assets 1,364 1,421 (57)
Right of use 170 162 8
Non-current financial assets 27 27 -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities 19 (17) 35
Provisions (122) (104) (18)
Provision for employee severance indemnities (90) (86) (4)
Total net fixed assets 1,953 2,014 (61)
Assets held for sale 8 5 3
TOTAL INVESTED CAPITAL 2,248 2,312 (64)
Equity 2,350 2,394 (44)
Financial receivables and other non-current assets (44) (50) 6
Current financial assets (393) (208) (185)
Cash and cash equivalents (372) (637) 265
Payables to banks and other non-current liabilities 473 620 (147)
Payables to banks and other current liabilities 234 194 40
Total net financial position (102) (82) (20)
TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES 2,248 2,312 (64)

Net working capital amounted to €287 million, down €6 million compared to €293 million at 31 December 2019.
This change was attributable to the following factors:

+ Higher inventories (€36 million);

- A €64 million decrease in trade receivables thanks to improved collection times and partly due to

turnover decline;

- A €38 million decrease in trade payables, which were influenced by an overall activity contraction
entailing in turn a decline in costs and the related payables;
- A €16 million increase in other net operating liabilities.

Net fixed assets totalled €1,953 million, compared to €2,014 million at 31 December 2019.

The negative change in Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets includes the effect arising
from the year-end exchange rate adjustment for items in foreign currency (chiefly US and Canadian
dollars) amounting to approximately €59 million, as well as the effect arising from depreciation and
amortisation for the year, which exceeded net investments.



LAVAZZA GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The Rights of Use refer to the application of IFRS 16 as of 1 January 2019, which led to the recognition in
the statement of financial position of a financial liability represented by the present value of future lease
payments, offset by the recognition among assets of a right of use of the leased asset.

Provisions increased mainly due to higher provisions associated with plans for employee incentives, as
well as for other future risks and charges related to corporate reorganisations and other risks associated
with several issues also arising from the economic situation generated by the Covid-19 health emergen-
cy. For further details, reference should be made to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
namely to sections concerning the Covid-19 impact and changes in provisions.

Reclassified statement of cash flows

€ million Year 2020 Year 2019
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 73 127
Income taxes 16 28
Financial expense/(income) 7 9
Value adjustments to financial assets and liabilities 2 1
(Gains) losses from disposal of assets 1
Additions to provisions, employee benefits and other non-monetary components 64 51
Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 152 145
RESULT ADJUSTED FOR NON-MONETARY COMPONENTS 314 362
Change in trade receivables 60 4
Change in inventories (39) (6)
Change in trade payables (37) (18)
Change in other receivables/payables 4 3
CASH FLOW AFTER CHANGES IN NET WORKING CAPITAL 302 345
Taxes paid (22) (25)
Use of provisions and indemnities paid (43) (29)
Interest and dividends collected, interest (paid) (7) 9)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 230 282
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (90) (134)
Purchase of intangible assets (21) (23)
Other disbursements for investment activities (1) ™
Acquisitions (20) 15
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (132) (143)
Dividends paid (51) (36)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (51) (36)
Other scope and non-monetary changes (40) 24
Exchange rate effect 13 7
CASH FLOWS GENERATED (USED) 20 120
Net financial position at year-start 82 15
Effect of IFRS 16 FTA at year-start - (53)
Net financial position at year-end 102 82
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As highlighted in the following chart, net financial position was positive for €102 million (compared to 31
December 2019, when it was positive for €82 million) with a €125 million discretionary cash generation
from core activities, in line with 2019, thus confirming the Group's solidity.

In particular, the positive flows generated by EBITDA for €253 million were partially offset by: (i) a nega-
tive change in net working capital for €12 million; (ii) taxes and interest expense paid of €29 million; (iii)
a positive net change in provisions and other non-monetary components for €24 million.

Moreover, in the reporting year, net investments in operating activities totalled €111 million and were

broken down as follows:

- Net investments in property, plant and equipment (€90 million), mainly involving plant, industrial
machinery and espresso machines provided on free loan for use;

- Net investments in intangible assets (€21 million), primarily due to development costs incurred in
order to adapt and upgrade the Group's IT and reporting systems.

Lastly, the change in net financial position was attributable to the following non-operating items:

- The negative effect arising from the acquisitions finalised during the year for a total of €19 million:
(i) acquisition of the investment in Y&L Coffee Limited for approximately €6.2 million, (ii) acquisi-
tion of the investment in Caffemotive S.r.I totalling €1.2 million; (iii) acquisition of the investment in
Manufacture du Café for €0.6 million; (iv) acquisition from the company Compass Contract Services
(UK) Limited of several assets (asset deal) for €1.7 million necessary in view of the implementation of
the OCS/Vending sector in the UK; and (v) payment of the €10 million outstanding debt arising from
the acquisition of Nims S.p.A. and withheld as security;

- Dividend payout for a total of €51 million.

The following is a reconciliation between the net financial position at 31 December 2019 and the net
financial position at 31 December 2020:

Positive

2019
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and other and collected
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Risk Management

The Group has adopted an internal control system, based on organisational rules, procedures and struc-
tures that allow the business to be run properly and in line with the goals set through an appropriate
process for identifying, measuring, managing and monitoring the main risks.

An effective internal control and risk management system serves to safeguard the corporate assets, the
efficiency and efficacy of business operations, the reliability of the information supplied to the corporate
bodies and the market, and compliance with laws and regulations.

In recent years, the Group has implemented a structured Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process
focused on managing risks that could jeopardise achievement of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The ERM framework, designed in accordance with corporate governance codes and internationally rec-
ognised best practices and formalised in the ERM policy, ensures, including through active involvement
of the top management, that major risks are promptly identified, assessed and monitored over time,
thanks to a process of risk analysis performed on the risk exposure trend and the state of progress of
mitigation measures.

In particular, in 2020 the Group integrated the standard risk management activities with additional,
specific analysis of the “Covid” scenario aimed at estimating the possible evolution of the business due
to the global pandemic scenario. In this connection, the main risk factors closely associated with the
Covid-19 situation were identified and assessed and their short-term effects and any structural conse-
quences for the business in the medium and long term were investigated.

The results of this process were reported to the top managers and then to the Board of Directors.

Exchange rate risk

The foreign exchange market, like all financial markets, was affected by the news and consequences of
the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic as of the end of January.

The year began with a EUR/USD exchange rate of 112. When the epidemic began in Europe, the dollar
rallied to reach a 2020 low of 1.0707 chiefly as a result of the downturn of equity markets, the risk-off
environment and the lockdowns established in most countries.

FED rate cuts and containment of the health emergency in the late spring allowed the euro to appreciate
sharply.

Both European and U.S. central banks immediately supported the market with expansionary monetary
manoeuvres as GDP plummeted in all countries.

In July, Europe launched the Recovery Fund programme providing for the disbursement to EU countries
of a series of loans, in part consisting of soft loans and in part of outright grants to support economic
recovery. This, combined with the FED’s statement setting aside its inflation rate target, triggered a
further phase of revaluation of the euro to above 1.18.

Tensions surrounding the U.S. elections restored the dollar to around 1.15, which then regained momen-
tum due to both Biden’s victory and the generalised optimism tied to the approval of the vaccines and
the launch of the related immunisation campaigns. The dollar ended the year at a high of 1.2281 on 30
December 2020.

The average annual exchange rate was 1.1422. Despite at historically low levels, volatility increased dur-
ing the year (from 5.13% at the beginning of January to 6.57% in December, with a peak of 13% in March).
Lastly, at the end of 2020 the EU and the United Kingdom reached a first agreement — though quite
limited — to settle the Brexit process.

As in previous years, currency needs for purchasing raw materials were met primarily through forward
purchases without taking any positions that could be considered of a speculative nature.

Significant currency exposures arising from sales in countries with currencies other than the euro were
monitored and hedged as part of the overall risk management. Also in this case, the Company did not
take any speculative positions.
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Interest rate risk

Central banks acted promptly to ensure liquidity to the financial system as of the first signs of the pan-
demic.

Although it did not further decrease its rates, as early as in March, the ECB expanded its asset purchase
programme, increasing TLTROs Il (Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations) by €1.2 trillion and
extending its duration, increased quantitative easing by €120 billion and launched its PEPP (Pandemic
Emergency Purchase Plan) of €750 billion. At its final meeting in December 2020, the ECB increased the
PEPP by an additional €500 billion.

The Federal Reserve took action, including intra-meeting action, cutting rates by 150 bps, implementing
a quantitative easing programme of USD 700 billion and adopting interventions of USD 300 billion for
the benefit of private and corporate credit. In addition, in March it injected short-term liquidity of USD
1.5 trillion through repurchase agreements.

Ten-year treasury yields fluctuated widely, between a high of 1.87% in January 2020 and a low of 0.50%
in August, to then return to 0.91% at the end of December due to general optimism in late 2020 and
prospects of a possible recovery of inflation.

The ten-year Bund performed similarly, albeit with negative yields: at the beginning of the year, it reached
a high of -0.16%, followed by a low of -0.85% in March and a return to -0.57% at the end of December.
The ten-year BTP-Bund spread was impacted by the course of the pandemic, rising from 140 points at the
beginning of the year to 278 in mid-March, when Italy was in the full grips of the first wave and the Bund
was purchased as safe-haven asset, to then fall back to around 110 basis points at the end of December.
In the Group's case in particular, interest-rate risk primarily derives from floating-rate medium-/long-
term loans. The Group contracted derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) with the aim of
mitigating this risk by transforming them from floating-rate to fixed-rate.

Commodity price risk

The coffee market, for both the Arabica and Robusta varieties, was characterised by extreme volatility,
with prices that, at least until the summer, continued the downtrend that has been in progress for several
years.

From the standpoint of the environment and geopolitical setting, fundamentals were quite relaxed,
whereas Arabica production drove prices down owing to the extremely high-quantity Brazilian harvest.
As has now been the case for many years, market performance continued to be driven by investment
funds.

Funds’ decisions to take long or short positions are based of course on fundamentals, but are also
strongly guided by commodities-related macroeconomic, foreign exchange and interest rates issues to
the detriment of other financial segments.

As in the past, the Groups has to acknowledge that the vast sums poured into commodities markets by
speculators mean that transactions of the opposite sign by traditional participants (roasters, internation-
al traders and coffee-growing countries) are absolutely unable to offset their effects.

Turning to a thorough price analysis, the New York exchange opened the year at 130 cents/Ib (second
position). It then moved between an annual low of 96 cents/Ib in mid-June and an annual high of 134
cents in early September, to close the year at 130 cents/Ib.

The high and relatively sustained levels of the final months of the year are to be attributed to a lack
of rain in Brazil’s coffee-growing areas, which led to concern for some time that the flowers would not
develop properly and begin turn into fruit.

The London exchange opened the year at 1,380 USD/t and reached an annual low of 1121 on 22 April,
again for the second position; the annual high was reached on 1 September with 1,463 USD/t and the
year ended at 1,386 USD/t.

In terms of production, the Brazilian harvest, in the positive cycle, was the most abundant in history with
70 million bags, of which more than 50 of Arabica; the quality, favoured by excellent climatic conditions,
was perfect.
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In high production cost countries such as those of Central America, such low prices have been extremely
critical. By contrast, in Brazil, chiefly thanks to the depreciation of the local currency against the dollar
and large, efficiently managed plantations, growers earned a lot further increasing plant care treat-
ments.

Columbia returned to steady production levels of approximately 14 million bags of excellent quality, sold
at very high differentials, partially offsetting stock exchange values; in this country as well, depreciation
helped producers.

By contrast, Central American countries, with their currencies tied to the dollar, suffered a great deal
despite the large differentials.

The Vietnamese harvest reported significant figures, with over 33 million bags — almost all of which are
exported —, and Indonesia was stable at around 12 million bags, with constantly increasing domestic
consumption, which accounted for approximately four million bags.

With regard to the African countries where the Group makes its purchases, mention should be made of
Uganda, due to its regular volumes and supply. The countries in West Africa continued to offer meagre
harvests of modest quality and significant logistic difficulties.

The Covid-19 epidemic, although it has severely hit a number of coffee-growing countries, and Brazil
in particular, did not cause significant difficulties in coffee harvesting and processing and in logistics.
Greater complications related to the availability of containers which, due to the subsequent closures in
the various countries, were not properly positioned upon recovery of traffic, resulting in some delays in
arrivals of coffee.

Credit risk

Despite the uncertainties caused by Covid-19, the Lavazza Group was able to manage critical payment
issues by containing losses to the same level as in previous years and further improving the results
obtained with regard to trade receivables. This was possible due to a shift in volumes into the At Home
channel, typically characterised by improved payment conditions, as well as the Away From Home chan-
nel, owing to the actions implemented following the health emergency, through the activation of the
standard repayment plans proposed to customers in automated mode so as to ensure prompt monitor-
ing and payment essentially in full by the end of the year.

On international markets, the choice to hedge credit risk with without-recourse factoring solutions for
insurance purposes proved even more appropriate in this year of critical situations at the global level,
hence the decision to reinforce hedging by concluding an agreement with SACE — CDP Group in order to
reach counterparty and country risk hedging of over 90% of the Parent Company’s international sales.
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Lavazza’s commitment

to the social and
environmental
sustainability of its activities

The Lavazza Group is committed toward conducting its business in an economically, environmentally
and socially sustainable way.

Making the most of its human resources and the territories and communities in which it operates and
minimising the environmental impact of its activities are the pillars of Lavazza’s approach to doing busi-
ness. This approach has allowed the Company to organise a programme of coordinated initiatives in
Italy and in the countries where it operates, in order to promote the integration of sustainability in all
areas of the business.

The support of the Group to the communities
hit by the Covid-19 emergency

The serious difficulty caused by the spread of the pandemic led the Group to take prompt action to
provide practical help to the local communities where it operates, working in close contact with the
institutional and third-sector partners. Lavazza was among the first companies at global level to give
concrete help to its communities from the very start of the health emergency.

In March, Lavazza donated €10 million to projects supporting healthcare, schools and vulnerable groups

in the communities in which it operates in Italy, with a particular focus on the Piedmont Region:

- €6 million was allocated to the Piedmont Region — Coronavirus emergency support, responding to
the fundraising initiative organised to buy what was necessary to support the healthcare facilities
and all the front-line staff working hard to tackle the situation;

- €3 million was donated to the La Stampa — Specchio dei tempi, Foundation which immediately got in-
volved in providing hospitals with new equipment and healthcare material, supplying free sanitising
kits to Turin schools and delivering basic necessities to people in physical and economic difficulty;

- A grant of €1 million was given to 143 small- and medium-sized businesses operating mainly in the
communities in which Lavazza operates in ltaly, namely Gattinara and Settimo Torinese in Piedmont
and Pozzilli in Molise. Between April and the beginning of July, the Lavazza team dedicated to Com-
munity Engagement worked daily with the NGOs, hospitals and associations gradually identified as
beneficiaries of the fund, in order to respond as effectively as possible to the new problems created
by the pandemic, which made it more complex for these bodies to operate and reach and support the
most vulnerable and disadvantaged members of the population.

Most donations were directed to bodies engaged in combating the economic and social crisis (distribu-
tion of meals, grants to families and people in difficulty) and supported the healthcare sector by allowing
the purchase of medical equipment such as pulmonary ventilators and contributing to the opening of
Covid-19 wards in the hospitals. The education sector has been supported through the donation of IT
devices and help with setting up initiatives to give continuity to vocational training and counter early
school leaving.
With solid Italian roots, the Group is among the leading global roasters, operating to date in over 140
countries through subsidiaries and distributors. The Group’s various entities have taken action to sup-
port the local communities in the respective countries in which they operate. From Australia to France,
from India to the United States, all Group companies contributed to different types of initiatives in sup-
port of the local communities hit by the pandemic. These included the free supply of coffee to healthcare
personnel, donations and direct interventions such as that carried out by Lavazza Professional UK's
employees. This Group company used 3D printers to produce components needed to create personal
protective equipment that was then donated to the public entities.

€10
million
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The Lavazza Group also wanted to support the communities impacted by the Covid-19 emergency in
the coffee-producing countries as well through the work of the Lavazza Foundation, which allocated
a special emergency response fund for 2020 worth more than €500,000. This initiative allowed about
100,000 beneficiaries to be reached in 14 countries through income-support, training support, health
protection and food emergency response schemes.

The dialogue with third-sector organisations revealed the urgent need for action both in urban and
the more remote rural areas. The Foundation worked with approximately 20 NGOs including: CESVI
in the Manguinhos favela in Brazil; Fondazione Italia Uganda in the shanty town of Luzira (a suburb of
Kampala); Engim Internazionale in the Medellin neighbourhood of La Sierra in Colombia; Raw Material
in Rwanda in the Nyabihu district, hit by floods, as well as the pandemic; Seeds for Progress Foundation
in the rural areas of Nicaragua; Oxfam in Yemen, Haiti and the Dominican Republic; Associazione Ver-
dad y Vida in Guatemala; COSPE in Ecuador; Olam in Indonesia; Save the Children in India among the
marginalised communities of the West Bengal; Soleterre Onlus in Uganda and El Salvador; Carcafé in
Colombia; NINA APS among the indigenous communities in Ecuador; Fondazione Juan Cuadrado in the
poorest neighbourhoods of Medellin.

Finally, the Lavazza Foundation contributed to the distribution of around 85,000 meals, 73,000 masks,
18,000 personal protective equipment, the creation of 400 gardens, 2,500 training sessions, 52 schol-
arships, 12 hand washing stations and support to the salaries of 6 teachers in rural areas.
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Lavazza and the Global Goals

In 2017, to provide a clearer framework and guidance for its sustainability efforts, Lavazza decided to
participate in the United Nations Global Compact embracing the Sustainable Development Goals pro-
moted by the United Nations as part of its 2030 Agenda. The challenges posed by the UN are addressed
to everyone, including the business world. It is for this reason that Lavazza decided to adopt the Goals
as guidelines for its own sustainability approach and setting itself a further goal: Goal Zero, i.e. using its
own power of communication to disseminate the United Nations messages, engaging its stakeholders in
the commitment to a sustainable future. In 2020, the Lavazza Group published its Sustainability Manifes-
to, which sets out the strategic Sustainable Development Goals for its business until 2030.

In defining the pillars of its commitment, the Group has identified 4 goals that are a priority for it:

- Goal 5 “Gender Equality”;

- Goal 8 “Decent Work and Economic Growth”;

- Goal 12 “Responsible Consumption and Production”;

- Goal 13 “Climate Action”.

The Group also committed to identifying specific targets for each Goal to be reached through pro-
grammes and projects. The actions implemented to reach these goals are illustrated in detail in the
Lavazza Group Sustainability Report “A Goal in Every Cup”.
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The commitment towards a sustainable
supply chain

The Company wishes to share its values with its stakeholders such as the Lavazza Group suppliers: it
is becoming more and more urgent as a Group to act on the most important CSR issues, such as, for
example, climate change, employment, human rights and the fight against corruption, involving those
who work with the Company every day.

During the year, the Group introduced the assessment and analysis of environmental and social aspects
relating to all active and strategic suppliers with the aim to strengthen the sustainable supply strategy
of Lavazza. In its first year of implementation, said process involved the Institutional Relations & Sustain-
ability, Food & Packaging Procurement, Coffee Machines Industry & Logistics Procurement and Indirect
Purchasing Departments.

Moreover, in order to tackle issues particularly relevant to the Company, such as children's rights and
human rights, the Group implemented several projects in partnership with traders and specialised NGOs
including Save the Children and Oxfam. Further information concerning these initiatives is available in
the Group's Sustainability Report.

Lavazza’s commitment to the community

Thanks to its community engagement programme, Lavazza is engaged in active dialogue with local
institutions and foundations to achieve projects benefiting and protecting the communities and areas in
which the Company has its offices and production facilities.

During the year, care activities in favour of local communities were strengthened to address the Covid-19
health emergency.

A project that embodies the Lavazza's community engagement programme is A.A.A. (Accoglie, Avvicina,
Accompagna — Welcome, Engage and Support), in which the Company, in collaboration with other part-
ners, acts directly on the fabric of the communities in which it operates. In particular, this project seeks
to create new job opportunities for individuals facing adversity by providing coffee-related training,
through the dedication, knowledge and professionalism of Lavazza’s trainers.

In addition, in partnership with the City of Turin, Lavazza concluded phase one of “TOward2030: What
Are You Doing?”, a project designed to raise awareness of the 2030 Agenda — the Goal Zero of Lavazza
— using the language of street art to get the city’s walls talking about sustainability.

Environmental sustainability

In recent years, Lavazza has been engaged in creating a low-carbon economy in line with the 2030
Agenda, working on solutions to meet the need to reduce the environmental impact of the raw materials,
packaging, coffee machines, transport and end of life of its products.

The adaptation and mitigation of the effects of climate change, including the actions on areas not under
its direct control, such as the coffee’s agricultural production phase, are of vital importance for the
Group.

In its Environmental Sustainability strategy, Lavazza has set itself the ambitious target of becoming car-
bon neutral by 2030 along the entire value chain.

To this end, Lavazza has introduced the Roadmap to Zero: climate neutrality will be the result of an
inter-functional process of quantifying and reducing environmental impacts, with a consequent improve-
ment in the environmental performance of processes and products, and offsetting the residual and
“non-reducible” CO2eq emissions of products, services and processes.

The process started in 2020 with the offsetting of Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions (direct emissions of
greenhouse gases from its own installations resulting from the generation of electricity, heat and steam
purchased and consumed) under the direct control of Lavazza Group companies; whilst as of 2021, the
process will continue with the offsetting of Scope 3 indirect emissions, due to activities not under the
Company’s direct control, through the gradual neutralisation of specific products and brands.

“Roadmap
toZero”:
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Cooperating with coffee communities:
the work of the Lavazza Foundation

Each year, the Company supports the projects of the no-profit Giuseppe and Pericles Lavazza Foundation,
established in 2004, which continues to operate in coffee-producing countries and support cooperation
projects focusing on economic and social development of the producing communities and especially
promoting the environmental sustainability of coffee production.

To date, the Foundation finances and cooperates in more than 25 projects in 17 coffee-producing coun-
tries, involving around 100,000 people. Training for good agricultural practices, adapting and combating
climate change, supporting young people and empowering women, is aimed primarily at communities of
small coffee growers. Field projects are implemented by local organisations such as foundations, public
bodies or non-governmental organisations. The Foundation funds projects in partnership with other
public and private donors, believing in the leverage of co-financing and intervening in the design and
monitoring phases of the on-field initiatives.

Detailed information about the projects supported by the Foundation is available in the Group's Sustainability
Report.

Photo by Steve McCurry
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The health, safety,
energy and environment
management system

Within the framework of the implementation of the Group’s HSE (Health, Safety and Environment) Guide-
lines and the Corporate Workplace Health and Safety Policy, the Company continued to implement an
Integrated Health, Safety, Energy and Environment Management System (SG-SSEA), in line with the ISO
14001 and ISO 45001 standards of reference. The Health, Safety, Energy and Environment Management
System (SG-SSEA) is coordinated by the HSE Department and managed through a dedicated company
portal.

During the year, the corporate policy and guidelines were updated with the inclusion of the recently is-
sued ISO 45001 standard requirements. In 2020, Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. maintained its 1ISO 14001:2015 en-
vironmental certification (which includes the Nuvola headquarters, the Innovation Center and the plants
in Turin, Gattinara and Pozzilli) with its extension to the new Turin-based plant called "Factory 1895".

At the Lavazza Group level, the ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System) certifications for
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A., Lavazza Professional UK Ltd and Lavazza Professional North America LLC, and
Carte Noire Operations S.a.s., and OHSAS 18001:2007 (Occupational Health and Safety Management
System) certifications for Lavazza Professional UK Ltd and Carte Noire Operations S.a.s. were also re-
newed during the year, which also saw Lavazza Professional North America LLC obtain its first ISO 45001
(Occupational Health and Safety Management System) certification.

In supplier qualification, the first HSE requirements were implemented as an integral part of sustaina-
bility requirements.

The Company applied for and was awarded the appropriate extensions of its environmental permits
required for the use of its production facilities.

In occupational health and safety, no serious accidents occurred and the number of occupational ac-
cidents continued to decline as showed by the main performance indicators in terms of frequency and
severity.
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Research and
Development

In 2020, research and development took a huge leap forward in organisational, result and investment
terms.

The organisation saw an integration both in functional terms, between coffee machines, systems and
food, and in geographical terms, extending the synergies with the coffee machine, food and Lavazza
Professional Systems teams.

The resources are aimed at generating ever more sustainable products with a high sensory quality that
offer the consumer an increasingly broad experiential spectrum.

The launch of the product range under the brand Coffee Designer 1895 by Lavazza is definitely going in
the direction of high sensory quality.

Consistency with the environmental sustainability issues is assured by a continual process of sustaina-
bility integration along the entire supply chain based on a programme for innovating products — through
the sustainable-by-design approach — and processes that leads to a concrete and measurable plan for
reducing the Group's impacts.

The results are visible with the launches of the first jTierral-branded recyclable packaging, the first step
in a comprehensive long-term programme that will lead to a 40% reduction in CO2 consumption gener-
ated by flexible packs.

Another commercial launch carried out during the year involved the KLIX systems, where the PS cups
were replaced with cups having a paper content above 96% and with a benefit in terms of CO2 reduction
that can reach up to 60% compared to the current situation.

Coffee machine development covered both the HCS areas (with the launch of the Lavazza-Smeg ma-
chine) and the Away From Home sector.

The OCS area saw the launch of the Elogy Milk coffee machine dedicated to Nims, a version that serves
single and double espresso coffees, as well as offers the option to dispense milk-based beverages,
including cappuccino with the “One Touch Cappuccino” function.

The Lavazza Professional North America's Flavia range as well saw the important launch of the Flavia
600 coffee machine also coupled with a cold add-on module, the only one on the market, able to serve
cold beverages (e.g., Cold Brew).

In the Italy Food Service area, there was a mass launch of telemetry on professional coffee machines,
which are monitored remotely to allow an important performance improvement in terms of in-cup quality
and cost control.
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Relationship
with personnel

The Group’s personnel costs were slightly higher compared to the previous year (+2%).

The reporting year was marked by difficulties linked to the pandemic, but the continuity of the main
HR processes (remuneration policy, performance management, training) was assured by mainly digi-
tal-mode management, accelerating the development of the related tools and digital modules, where
necessary.

The personnel recruitment policies were confirmed when instrumental to supporting the priority pro-
jects for the business and to reinforce the skills of staff functions, revising the timing for placements in
respect of forecasts, when applicable.

Priority was given to protecting employees’ health and ensuring the Company’s operations thanks to
actions such as the widespread introduction of home working, the promotion of prevention, health and
safety programmes and online communication and training.

These actions, combined with others such as the tight restrictions on travel and movement, helped to
reduce variable labour cost items significantly (paid overtime and various allowances, greater use of
holidays).

No cuts or structural reductions in the workforce were reported, even in those geographical areas par-
ticularly impacted by the Covid-19 effect such as, for example, the Away From Home consumption chan-
nels in France, the United States and the UK, where the ordinary or extraordinary tools introduced by
the different legislations have been used as a priority in order to ensure cost control, while maintaining
the organisation’s continuity, and be ready to support market recovery.
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The Parent Company
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.

The figures of this section are illustrated in compliance with Italian GAAP (OIC).

Operating and Financial Performance of the
Parent Company Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.

The following table shows the Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.’s operating and financial highlights at
31 December 2020 compared with the previous year:

€ million

Year 2020 Ratio % Year 2019 Ratio %
Net revenues 1,521.0 100.0% 1,512.4 100.0%
EBITDA 189.6 12.5% 169.9 1.2%
EBIT 871 5.7% 68.4 4.5%
Profit before taxes 111.0 7.3% 115.3 7.6%
Profit for the year 91.5 6.0% 106.2 7.0%
Net working capital 428.8 432.0
Net fixed assets 2,230.2 YAVAWS
Total uses 2,659.0 2,603.7
Net financial position 378.3 416.6
Equity 2,280.7 2,871
Total sources 2,659.0 2,603.7
Capex 56.3 88.6
Headcount 1,741 1,701
ROS 5.7% 4.5%
ROI 7.2% 5.8%
ROE 4.3% 4.9%
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Reclassified statement of profit or loss of
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.

€ million

12.2020 Ratio% 12.2019 Ratio% Changes Changes %
Net revenues 1,521.0 100.0% 1,512.4 100.0% 8.6 0.6%
Other income and revenues 103.9 6.8% 98.6 6.5% 53 5.4%
Total income and revenues 1,624.9 106.8% 1,611.0 106.5% 13.9 0.9%
Cost of sales 7241 47.5% 7245 47.8% (0.4) (0.1%)
Costs of services 498.2 32.8% 5211 34.5% (22.9) (4.4%)
Other costs 50.0 3.3% 38.3 2.5% 1.7 30.5%
Total external costs 1,272.3 83.5%  1,283.9 84.8% (11.6) (0.9%)
Value added 352.6 23.2% 3271 21.6% 25.5 7.8%
Personnel costs 163.0 10.7% 157.2 10.4% 5.8 3.7%
EBITDA 189.6 12.5% 169.9 11.2% 19.7 11.6%
Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 89.6 5.9% 85.0 5.6% 4.6 5.4%
Provisions 12.9 0.8% 16.5 11% (3.6) (21.8%)
EBIT 871 5.7% 68.4 4.5% 18.7 27.3%
Income (expense) from investments 301 2.0% 38.5 2.5% (8.4) (21.8%)
Financial income (expense) (6.2) (0.4%) 8.4 0.6% (14.6) (173.8%)
Profit before taxes 111.0 7.3% 115.3 7.6% (4.3) (3.7%)
Income taxes (19.5) (1.3%) 99) (0.6%) (10.4) 114.3%
Profit for the year 91.5 6.0% 106.2 7.0% (14.7) (13.8%)

Net revenues amounted to €1,521.0 million, up 0.6% compared to €1,512.4 million for 2019.

EBIT amounted to €87.1 million, up €18.7 million compared to €68.4 million for 2019. EBIT margin im-

proved going from 4.5% to 5.7%. + 27 3‘y
. (o]

Profit before taxes amounted to €111.0 million, down by €4.3 million compared to €115.3 million in the
previous year, and was mainly impacted by the negative performance of exchange rates and the lower
dividends authorised by subsidiaries.

Profit for the year amounted to €91.5 million, down €14.7 million compared to 2019.
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Reclassified balance sheet of
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.

€ million

2020 2019 Changes

Inventories 288.6 263.7 24.9
Trade receivables 1021 1191 (17.0)
Receivables from subsidiaries, associates and Parent 251.0 273.0 (22.0)
Deferred tax assets 50.4 43.8 6.6
Other prepayments and accrued income 377 481 (10.4)
Property, plant and equipment held for sale 8.4 53 31

A.  Total operating assets 738.2 753.0 (14.8)
Trade payables 204.3 249.2 (44.9)
Payables to subsidiaries, associates and Parent 25.7 10.3 15.4

Tax payables and payables to social security institutions 14.7 9.5 5.2
Other liabilities and deferred income 64.7 52.0 12.7

Total operating liabilities 309.4 321.0 (11.6)

C.  Net working capital 428.8 432.0 (3.2)
Intangible assets 545.9 570.4 (24.5)
Property, plant and equipment 375.3 313.3 62.0
Financial assets 1,440.2 1,397.6 42.6

D. Total fixed assets 2,361.4 2,281.3 80.1
Provisions 118.6 95.9 227
Employee termination indemnities 12.6 13.7 (1.1)

E.  Total fixed liabilities 131.2 109.6 21.6
Total net fixed assets 2,230.2 2,177 58.5

G. Total invested capital, net - Uses (C + F) 2,659.0 2,603.7 55.3
Cash and cash equivalents (179.3) (247.3) 68.0
Current financial assets 93.2 74.9 18.3
Financial liabilities 464.4 589.0 (124.6)

H. Net financial position 378.3 416.6 (38.3)
Capital 25.0 25.0 0.0
Reserves 6717.0 616.8 60.2
Retained earnings 1,487.2 1,4391 481
Profit for the year 91.5 106.2 (14.7)

1. Equity 2,280.7 2,1871 93.6

L.  Total sources (I + H) 2,659.0 2,603.7 55.3
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Net working capital amounted to €428.8 million, down €3.2 million compared to €432.0 million at

31 December 2019. This change was attributable to the following factors:

- A€24.9 million increase in inventories, mainly driven by higher stock of green coffee, both by volume
and by value, for approximately €17 million;

- A €39.7 million decrease in trade receivables thanks to improved collection times and partly due to
the drop in turnover;

- A €11.6 million decrease in trade payables relating to an overall cost decline.

Net fixed assets totalled €2,361.4 million, compared to €2,281.30 million at 31 December 2019.

The €24.5 million decrease in intangible assets was the result of the combined effect of higher invest-
ments for €19.1 million, chiefly attributable to the capitalisation of costs of software for long-term use,
and the decline due to amortisation for the year amounting to €43.6 million.

The €62 million net increase in property, plant and equipment, mainly referring to plant and machinery,
was chiefly attributable to the €66.9 million revaluation since gross investments for €38.5 million were
offset by the €43.4 million depreciation for the year.

It should be noted that the Company has decided to revalue its own property, plant and equipment
included in the item plant and machinery in compliance with Article 110 of Decree Law No. 104 of
14 August 2020 (so-called ‘August Decree’), converted into Law No. 126 of 13 October 2020 (/talian
Official Journal No. 253 of 13 October 2020, Ordinary Supplement No. 37), in force since 14 October 2020,
which allowed the revaluation of business assets, as well as equity investments held by corporations
and commercial entities which do not adopt international accounting standards in the preparation of
financial statements.

The values recorded in the financial statements and in inventory following the revaluation, as deter-
mined based on a special appraisal using the cost method, do not in any case exceed the values actually
attributable to the assets with regard to their amount, their production capacity, the actual possibility of
their economic use in the company (so-called 'economic value' or ‘internal’ value), as well as the current
values and prices recorded on Italian or foreign regulated markets (so-called 'market value').

The Company allocated the 3% substitutive tax equal to €2,005,944 to the positive revaluation balance
of €66,864,786. This will be paid in a maximum of three instalments of equal amount, the first of which
by the deadline for paying the balance of income taxes due for the tax period with reference to which
the revaluation is carried out.

The €42.6 million increase of financial assets was mainly attributable to capital injections and write-
off of receivables from Lavazza Professional Holding Europe S.r.l. and Lavazza Professional Holding
North America Inc. in order to support them during the crisis of the Away From Home sector, due to the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Provisions increased mainly due to higher provisions for employees, as well as for other future risks
and charges associated with several issues also arising from the economic situation generated by the
Covid-19 health emergency.

Net financial position was negative at €378.3 million, up by €38.3 million compared to 2019.
The increase mainly refers to the positive operating cash generation.
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Reclassified statement of cash flows of
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.

€ million
Year 2020 Year 2019

Profit for the year 91.5 106.2
Amortisation and depreciation 84.2 78.6
Net change in employee termination indemnities (1) (1.0)
Net change in provisions 22.7 247
Write-downs of equity investments and securities included in fixed assets 3.0 3.0
Other write-downs of fixed assets 2.6 4.8
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (66.9)

Revaluation reserve 64.9

Net effect of merger 0.2

Dividends accrued to be received (4.0)

Changes in items of net working capital

- inventories (28.0) (12.8)
- trade receivables 171 19.6
- receivables from others and other assets 24.9 (1.7)
- trade payables (45.0) 12.3
- other payables and liabilities 33.2 (17.9)
Cash flows from (used for) operating activities 199.3 215.8
Net purchases of:

- intangible assets (19.1) (19.3)
- property, plant and equipment (37.2) (69.3)
- investments in subsidiaries, associates and other companies (51.6) (107.9)
- other non-current financial assets 9.6 159.3
Disposals of:

- equity investments - 1.0
Cash flows from (used for) investing activities (98.3) (36.2)
Dividends paid (50.2) (35.)
Change in hedge reserve for expected cash flows (12.5) 20.9
Cash flows from (used for) financing activities (62.7) (14.2)
Net cash flow for the year 38.3 165.4
Net financial assets / liabilities at year-start (416.6) (582.0)

Net financial assets / liabilities at year-end (378.3) (416.6)
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Net cash flows from operating activities was positive at €199.3 million, significantly benefiting from the
positive earnings component (result for the year plus non-monetary costs) of €197.1 million, in addition
to the liquidity generated by the change in net working capital of €2.2 million.

The cash flows from investing activities have an overall negative net balance of €98.3 million, mainly
composed of:

Net purchases of intangible assets (€19.1 million), mainly attributable to the capitalisation of projects
relating to software for long-term use and development costs for investments in technological inno-
vation;

Net purchases of property, plant and equipment (€37.2 million), chiefly related to the plant and ma-
chinery category for the construction of two new packaging lines for the BLUE pods and ground
coffee packs, as well as of the plants and production lines of the new Turin-based “Factory 1895”;
Recapitalisations of investments in the subsidiaries Lavazza Professional Holding NA Inc. and Lavaz-
za Professional Holding Europe S.r.l. (€40.7 million) owing to the need to support their investee
operating companies during the Covid-19 pandemic, which caused the drop of the Away From Home
consumption;

Investment acquisitions (€2.4 million), chiefly attributable to the full acquisition of Caffemotive S.r.l.;
Acquisition of a 35% interest in Y&L Coffee Ltd (€6.2 million), a NewCo through which Yum China
Holdings and the Lavazza Group entered into a joint venture aimed at studying and developing the
Lavazza Coffee Shop concept in China. The project was launched by opening the new Flagship Store
Lavazza in Shanghai, the first outside Italy;

Decrease in other financial instruments (€9.6 million).
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Parent Company’s sales in ltaly

At Home business

The market recorded a +9.3% compared to 2019 increase associated with the shift in consumption due
to the effects of the pandemic, driven by the Single Serve segment, thus showing an opposite trend to
the decline seen over the last years.

The Parent Company consolidated its market share by volume (39.8%, or a growth of +0.4 percentage
points compared to 2019) and its share by value (35.2%, or -0.7 points compared to 2019).

In the Roast & Ground segment, Lavazza's share rose from 40.8% in 2019 to 41.3%.

The Parent Company's sales in the retail channel were positive both by volume (+4.5%) and by turnover
(+6.3%) thanks to the contribution of the Single Serve and Roast & Ground segments.

Away From Home business

The Parent Company reported a significant reduction in the Away From Home business (-28.6%), with
a more marked loss in the Food Service channel as a result of the sharp traffic decline in cafés and
restaurants.

The OCS/Vending channel dropped by 17%.

Parent Company’s international market sales

The positive growth trend of the Parent Company, Lavazza S.p.A., on international markets in terms
of turnover (+8.8%) continued on a like-for-like consolidation basis thanks to the contribution of the
At Home business (+33%), which offset the slowdown of the Away From Home business (-20%) due to the
consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Particularly significant growth was reported in the main Eastern European markets, namely in Poland
(+43%),Bulgaria(51%), Romania (67%) and Russia (+33%) —the key marketinthisareainterms ofturnover—,
where Lavazza has acquired market leadership in the Roast & Ground and capsule segments with a 14%
MAT value share as at December 2020.

Treasury shares / shares of holding
companies

The Parent Company, Luigi Lavazza S.p.A., owns 2,499,998 treasury shares worth €1 each.

The Parent Company does not own and, during the financial year it did not buy and/or sell, any share of
the Holding Company either directly or through a trust company or other persons.

The Parent Company did not establish secondary offices in 2020.

Luigi Lavazza S.p.A., and the Italian Group companies together with their parent/consolidating com-
pany, Finlav S.p.A., participated for the three-year period 2019-2021 in the lItalian tax consolidation
programme.

With regard to compliance with privacy legislation, the Company conducted assessments in view of
compliance with the provisions of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/679 on the protection of natural persons with
regard to the processing of personal data.

41.3%
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Information on management and
coordination activities

The Parent Company is responsible for the management and coordination of its subsidiaries and it is not
subject to management and coordination by its Parent Company, Finlav S.p.A.

Organisational, Management and Control
Model as per Legislative Decree No. 231 of
8 June 2001

In accordance with the provisions of Legislative Decree No. 231 of 8 June 2001 (hereunder “Decree”)
relating to the “Administrative liability of legal persons, companies and associations even without legal
personality”, since 2006 Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. has adopted and subsequently updated an Organisational,
Management and Control Model (hereunder “231 Model”) with the aim of ensuring ethical and transpar-
ent conduct aimed at reducing the risk of the offences provided for by the aforesaid Decree.

The task of overseeing the operation and observance of the 231 Model, and updating it, was attributed
to a Supervisory Body vested with independent powers of initiative and control.

In detail, in order to ensure greater effectiveness for the controls on the efficacy of the 231 Model
adopted, the Board of Directors of Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. considered it appropriate to identify a collegiate
Supervisory Body, composed of three members (two internal members who are Company managers and
one external member, acting as Chair), which meets the autonomy and independence, integrity, profes-
sionalism and continuity of action requirements.

The Supervisory Body is currently made up of the following members: Alessandro De Nicola (Chairman),
Simona Musso (Chief Legal Officer and General Counsel) and Maurizio Virano (Chief Internal Auditor).
The Supervisory Body reports to the Board of Directors on the actual state of the 231 Model implemen-
tation and the outcomes of the supervisory activity carried out, through a written half-yearly report, also
addressed to the Board of Statutory Auditors, that illustrates the monitoring activities carried out, the
critical issues that emerged and any appropriate corrective and/or improvement measures for imple-
menting the 231 Model.

The most recent update to the 231 Model was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on
11 December 2020.

Post balance sheet events

please refer to the dedicated paragraph in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Outlook

Despite the difficult historic moment the Group is experiencing, in 2020 it continued to develop its pro-
jects, as exemplified by the investments on the Chinese and American markets.

In a context that is still severely influenced by the pandemic’s development, the crisis has not changed
the strategy of the Group, which has continued to look to the future focusing on innovation and sustain-
ability — concepts on which the new products to be launched on the market in 2021 are based.
Entering new markets and launching new products will enable the Group to get the best out of each of its
brands, creating a perfect blend made up of the global Lavazza brand, the three “local jewels” — Carte
Noire, Merrild and Kicking Horse Coffee — and its best specialists in the professional sector, namely
Lavazza Professional and Nims.

The goal for the coming year is to strengthen the Group further in terms of resilience and dynamism.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Alberto Lavazza
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Accounting Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

€ thousand Notes 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Goodwill 1041 917,899 956,845
Other intangible assets 10.2 446,268 464,217
Rights of use 10.3 169,600 162,064
Property, plant and equipment 10.4 586,002 610,018
Investments in other companies 10.5 24134 24,232
Non-current financial assets 10.6 46,007 53,071
Deferred tax assets 10.7 78,832 61,237
Other non-current assets 10.8 4,298 4,331
Total non-current assets 2,273,040 2,336,015
Inventories 10.9 404,713 369,305
Trade receivables 10.10 243115 306,623
Current tax receivables 101 4,711 13,997
Other current assets 10.8 88,297 106,155
Current financial assets 10.6 392,712 208,148
Cash and cash equivalents 10.12 371,824 637,147
Total current assets 1,505,372 1,641,375
Assets held for sale 8,397 5,247
TOTAL ASSETS 3,786,809 3,982,637
Share capital 1013 25,000 25,000
Reserves 1013 2,249,645 2,239,560
Profit for the year 72,346 126,608
Equity attributable to the Group 2,346,991 2,391,168
Equity attributable non-controlling interests 10.13 2,738 2,521
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 532 774
TOTAL EQUITY 2,350,261 2,394,463
Non-current financial liabilities 10.14 345,630 508,071
Right-of-use liabilities - non current 10.15 127,841 121,888
Provisions for employee benefits 10.16 89,753 86,314
Provisions for future risks and charges 1017 94,311 78,613
Deferred tax liabilities 10.7 60,229 77,921
Other non-current liabilities 10.20 2,034 7
Total non-current liabilities 719,798 872,978
Current financial liabilities 1014 216,230 177,996
Right-of-use liabilities - current 1015 17,057 15,594
Trade payables 1019 329,279 367,804
Provisions (current portion) 1047 28,022 25,059
Current tax payables 10.18 15,273 2,207
Other current liabilities 10.20 110,889 126,536
Total current liabilities 716,750 715,196

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,786,809 3,982,637
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

€ thousand Note Year 2020 Year 2019
Net revenues 11 2,085,258 2,199,690
Cost of sales 1.2 (1,264,881) (1,299,210)
GROSS PROFIT 820,377 900,480
Promotional and advertising costs 1.3 (185,251) (205,025)
Selling costs 1.4 (177,945) (192,566)
General and administrative expenses 1.5 (275,858) (284,536)
Research and development costs 1.6 (15,041) (17,358)
Other operating income (expense) 1.7 (44,073) (34,839)
OPERATING PROFIT 122,209 166,156
Non-recurring income (expense) 1.7 (13,549) (10,133)
Income (losses) for investments in JVs 1.7 (948)

PROFIT BEFORE THE FINANCIAL COMPONENT AND TAXES 107,712 156,023
Financial income (expense) 1.9 (18,734) (288)
Dividends and results from investments 1.9 107 99
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 89,085 155,834
Income taxes for the year 1110 (16,207) (28,452)
PROFIT (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 72,878 127,382
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 72,878 127,382
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING 532 774
INTERESTS

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 72,346 126,608
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

€ thousand Year 2020 Year 2019
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 72,878 127,382
Translation differences of foreign financial statements (49,620) 13,665
(Loss)/gain from hedging derivatives (cash flow hedge) (11,048) 21,924
(Loss)/gain from securities (3,774) 5,531
Other components of comprehensive income that will be subsequently

reclassified to profit/(loss) for the year, net of taxes (64,442) 41120
(Loss)/gain from revaluation of defined benefit plans (2,317) (5,847)
Other components of comprehensive income that will not be subsequently (2,317) (5,847)
reclassified to profit/(loss) for the year, net of taxes ’ !
TOTAL COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXES (66,759) 35,273
TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXES 6,119 162,655
Equity holders of the Parent 5,762 161,879

Non-controlling interests 357 771
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

€ thousand Year 2020 Year 2019
NET PROFIT 72,878 127,382
Income taxes 16,207 28,452
Financial expense/(income) 6,649 8,948
Value adjustments to financial assets/liabilities 1,937 770
RESULT BEFORE TAXES, INTEREST AND ADJUSTMENTS TO FINANCIAL ASSETS 97,671 165,552
(Gains) losses from disposal of assets (316) 1,305
Additions to provisions, employee benefits and other non-monetary components 64,709 50,887
Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 151,885 144,559
RESULT ADJUSTED FOR NON-MONETARY COMPONENTS 313,949 362,303
Change in trade receivables 59,647 4,370
Change in inventories (38,854) (6,198)
Change in trade payables (37,259) (18,189)
Change in other receivables/payables 4174 3,269
CASH FLOWS AFTER CHANGES IN NET WORKING CAPITAL 301,657 345,555
Taxes paid (22,046) (25131)
Use of provisions and indemnities paid (42,704) (28,923)
Interest and dividends collected, interest (paid) (6,646) (8,948)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 230,261 282,553
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (90,451) (134,119)
Purchases of intangible assets (20,688) (22,875)
Change in current financial assets (179,052) 37,539
Change in non-current financial assets 6,017 (414)
Change in derivatives (13,869) 15,965
Disposals (Acquisitions) of other equity investments (19,933) 14,606
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (317,976) (89,298)
New bank loans and payables - -
Net reimbursement of bank loans and payables (122,424) (95,109)
Net reimbursement of right-of-use liabilities (16,869) (14,100)
Dividends paid (50,551) (35,657)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (189,844) (144,866)
Changes in equity - -
Exchange rate effect 12,236 (6,555)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED (USED) (265,323) 41,834
Cash and cash equivalents at year-start 637,147 595,313

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 371,824 637,47
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Reserve for . Equity
. . Share Share Treasury OtP‘Ier Retained Cash flow adjustments to Reserve for Reserve‘for FTA . L attributable to Total
Movements in equity . . capital N hedge FVOCI financial translation attributable to . 2
capital premium shares earnings employee . . reserve non-controlling equity
reserves reserve instruments differences the Group .
benefits interests
Balance at 1 January 2020 25,000 224  (17,733) 628,235 1,661,125 6,221 (4,901) 7,194 2,427 83,376 2,391,168 3,295 2,394,463
Profit for the year - - - - 72,346 - - - - - 72,346 532 72,878
Other components of - - . - (M048) (2,317) (3.774) (49,444) ) (66,583) (176)  (66,759)
comprehensive income
Ig:::fy“;g:ehe"s“’e profit/(loss) 55 509 224 (17733) 628235 1733471  (4,827) (7,218) 3,420 (47,017) 83,376 2,396,931 3,651 2,400,582
Option rights - - - - - - - - - - -
Payment of dividends - - - (50,175) - - - (50,175) (375) (50,550)
Reclassifications - other ) ) ) 7,908 (7.672) ) ) ) 236 (6) 230
movements
Balance at 31 December 2020 25,000 224  (17,733) 636,143 1,675,624 (4,827) (7,218) 3,420 (47,017) 83,376 2,346,992 3,270 2,350,262
Cash Reserve for . Equity
. . Share Share Treasury Otl'mer Retained flow adjustments to Reserve for Reserve‘for FTA . Equity attributable to Total
Movements in equity X . capital . FVOCI financial translation attributable to . .
capital premium shares earnings hedge employee I . reserve non-controlling equity
reserves instruments differences the Group .
reserve benefits interests
Balance at 1 January 2019 25,000 224 (17,733) 628,235 1,569,789  (15,750) 933 1,663 (11,218) 83,376 2,264,519 3,074 2,267,593
Profit for the year - - - - 126,608 - - - - 126,608 774 127,382
Other components of - - - - 2937 (5,844) 5,531 13,645 35,269 3 35,272
comprehensive income
I;’::L?y"e’ap:e"ens“’e profit/lloss) 55 500 224  (17733) 628,235 1,696,397 6,187 4,91) 7194 2,427 83,376 2,426,396 3,851 2,430,247
Option rights - - - - - - - - - -
Payment of dividends - - - (35,100) - - - (35,100) (556) (35,656)
Reclassifications - other ) ) . (172) 34 10 ) ) (128) (128)
movements
Balance at 31 December 2019 25,000 224 (17,733) 628,235 1,661,125 6,221 (4,901) 7,194 2,427 83,376 2,391,168 3,295 2,394,463
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Notes to the
Consolidated
Financial Statements
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1. Company information

The publication of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. (the Parent Company)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been authorised by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021.
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. is a company limited by shares registered and domiciled in Italy. The registered
office is in Turin, via Bologna 32.

Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. and its investee companies are directly and indirectly controlled by Finlav S.p.A.,
with registered office in Turin, Via Bologna 32.

The Lavazza Group produces and distributes coffee in Italy and internationally under its own brand and
other leading industry brands (Carte Noire, Merrild and Kicking Horse Coffee).

The Lavazza Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements at and for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been prepared on a going-concern basis.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting standards

2.1 Principles of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2020 were prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and endorsed by the European Union. IFRS is also meant to include all revised international
accounting standards (IAS) and all the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpreta-
tion Committee (IFRIC) previously known as Standing Interpretation Committee (SIC).

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a cost basis, taking account of impair-
ment, where appropriate, with the exception of derivative financial instruments and new acquisitions,
which have been accounted for at their fair value, unless IFRS permit a different basis of measurement.
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities subject to fair value hedging transactions, which would
otherwise be measured at cost, have been adjusted to take account of the changes in fair value attrib-
utable to the hedged risk.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been presented in euro and all values have been rounded
to thousands of euro, unless otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of consolidated subsidiaries have been prepared in reference to the same
reporting period, adopt the same accounting principles as the Parent Company and have been included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date on which the Group acquires control until the
moment such control ceases to exist. Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements include the subsidiary’s performance in proportion to the period in which the Group
exercised control.

Any non-controlling interests in the equity and reserves of subsidiaries and non-controlling interests in
the profit or loss for the year of consolidated subsidiaries are separately presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.2 Consolidated Accounting Statements

The statement of financial position presents a separate classification of assets and liabilities as “current/

non current”. The statement of profit or loss classifies expenses by their function. The statement of cash

flows has been prepared so as to represent cash flows from operating activities using the “indirect

method”, in accordance with IAS 7.

An asset is classified as current when:

- Itis expected to be realised or is held to sell or consume, in its normal operating cycle;

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period;

- Itis cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

- Itis expected to be settled its normal operating cycle;

« ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;

- The entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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2.3 Ongoing-concern basis

The 2020 Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by treating the business as a going
concern, inasmuch as it may reasonably be expected that the Lavazza Group will continue to operate for
the foreseeable future with a time horizon of over twelve months. For further details, reference should
be made to the Directors’ Single Report on Operations.

3. Consolidation area and
changes

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements at and for the year ended
31 December 2020 of Luigi Lavazza S.p.A., the Parent Company, and the subsidiaries for which
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A.has the power to direct the relevant activities of the company and is exposed to the
variability of their performance.

The consolidation area at 31 December 2020 has changed compared with the previous year as a result
of the following transactions:

Merger of Immobiliare I.N.N.E.T. S.r.l. into the parent company Luigi Lavazza effective 1 January 2020;
Incorporation and line-by-line consolidation of Lavazza Professional UK Operating Services Limited,
100% controlled by Lavazza Professional UK Limited, on 7 January 2020;

Acquisition of a 100% interest in Caffemotive S.r.l., consolidated using the line-by-line method as of
1 December 2020;

Acquisitionofa35%interestin Y&L Coffee Limited, consolidated usingthe equitymethodasof June 2020;
this acquisition led to the special-purpose vehicle through which Yum China Holdings and the Lavazza
Group entered into a joint venture aimed at studying and developing the Lavazza Coffee Shop con-
ceptin China. The project was launched by opening the new Flagship Store Lavazza in Shanghai, the
first outside ltaly;

Acquisition of a 50.01% interest in Manufacture de Café, consolidated using the equity method effec-
tive December 2020;

Exclusion from the consolidation area of Almada Comercio de Café Ltda following its liquidation in
November 2020.
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The following table provides a detail of consolidated companies, associates and other minor investees.

Company name Registered Sh‘are % held ) % held % held by
office capital directly indirectly the Group
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. Turin Eu 25,000,000 -
NIMS S.p.A. Padua Eu 3,000,000 97 - 100
Lavazza France S.a.s. Boulogne Eu 21,445,313 100 - 100
Carte Noire S.a.s. Boulogne Eu 103,830,406 100 - 100
Carte Noire Operations S.a.s. Lavérune Eu 28,523,820 - 100 100
Lavazza Kaffee G.m.b.H. Vienna Eu 218,019 100 - 100
Lavazza Deutschland G.m.b.H. Frankfurt Eu 210,000 100 - 100
Lavazza Premium Coffees Corp. New York  Usd 30,800,000 93 - 93
Kicking Horse Coffee Co. Ltd Invermere  Cad 214,994,202 80 - 80
Lavazza Coffee (UK) Ltd Uxbridge  Gbp 1,000 100 - 100
Lavazza Spagna S.L. Barcelona Eu 1,090,620 100 - 100
Lavazza Sweden AB Stockholm  Sek 100,000 100 - 100
Lavazza do Brasil Ltda Rio de Janeiro  BRL 71,097,753 100 100
Cofincaf S.p.A. Turin Eu 3,000,000 99 - 99
Lavazza Netherlands B.V. Amsterdam Eu 111,500,000 100 - 100
Fresh & Honest Café Ltd Chennai Inr 73,414,000 100 100
Lavazza Argentina SA Buenos Aires Ars 54,103,549 98 2 100
Lavazza Australia Pty Ltd Hawthorn  Aud 7,310,600 100 100
Lavazza Capital S.r.I. Turin Eu 200,000 100 100
Merrild Kaffe ApS Middelfart ~ Dkk 50,000 100 100
Merrild Baltics SIA Line Eu 2,828 - 100 100
Lavazza Professional France Roissy en France Eu 270,750 - 100 100
Lavazza Professional North America LLC Wilmington, ;g n.a. - 100 100
Delaware
Lavazza Professional Holding North America Inc Will)n;ilr;gx:rné usb 1 100 100
Lavazza Professional UK Ltd Basingstoke  Gbp 34,084,001 - 100 100
Lavazza Professional UK Operating Services Limited Basingstoke  Gbp 2,629,998 - 100 100
Lavazza Professional Germany GmbH Verden EU 50,000 - 100 100
Lavazza Professional Japan GK Tokyo JpY 1,000 - 100 100
Lavazza Australia OCS Pty Ltd Mulgrave  Aud 3,000,000 - 100 100
Caffemotive S.r.l. Trieste Eu 40,000 100 - 100
Lavazza Professional Holding Europe S.r.l. Turin Eu 1,000,000 100 - 100
Y&L Coffee Limited Hong Kong  USD 20,000,000 35 -
Manufacture de Café Paris EU 10,000 50 -
Lavazza Maroc S.a.r.l. Casablanca MAD 10,000 100 - 100
Lavazza Trading (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd Shenzhen  CNY 8,201,500 100 - 100
International Coffee Partners G.m.b.H. Hamburg Eu 175,000 20 - 20
INV. A.G. S.r.l. Milan Eu 207,637,307 " - "
Clubitaly S.p.A. Milan Eu 103,300 4 - 4
Connect Ventures One LP London  Gbp n.a. 3 - 3
Casa del Commercio e del Turismo S.p.A. Turin Eu 114,700 3 3
Tamburi Investment Partners S.p.A. Milan Eu 76,853,716 0.27 0.27
Immobiliere 3F (previously Le Foyer du Fonctionnaire) Paris Eu 46,552,000 n.a. n.a.
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4. Consolidation criteria

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. and its

subsidiaries at 31 December 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed or entitled to variable

returns arising from its relationship with the investee entity, together with the ability to influence such

returns by exercising its power over the said entity.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if it has all the following:

- Power over the investee, that is to say the ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee, i.e.,
the activities that significantly affect the investee’s returns;

- Exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

In general, the majority of voting rights is deemed to entail controls over the investee. In support of

this presumption, and when the Group holds less than the majority of voting rights (or similar rights),

the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances to determine whether it controls the investee,

including:

- Contractual agreements with other vote-holders;

- Rights under contractual agreements;

- Voting rights and potential voting rights of the Group.

Consolidation of an investee begins from the date the Group obtains control of the investee and ceases

when the Group loses control of the investee. Assets, liabilities, revenues and costs of the subsidiary

acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the

date the Group obtains control until the date the Group no longer has control over the subsidiary.

All subsidiaries are consolidated using the line-by-line method. According to this method, the consoli-

dated entities’ assets, liabilities, income and expenses are incorporated into the consolidated financial

statements line by line. The carrying amount of the equity investments is derecognised together with

the corresponding share of the investees’ equity, attributing each asset and liability its current value at

the date of acquisition of control. Any residual difference, where positive, is taken to goodwill; where

negative, it is taken to the statement of profit or loss.

When preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, all elements of assets and liabilities, income

and expenses and cash flows between Group entities are eliminated, along with unrealised gains and

losses on intra-Group transactions.

All assets and liabilities of foreign entities in currencies other than the euro that fall within the scope

of consolidation are translated at the spot exchange rates at the reporting date (current exchange rate

method), whereas the related revenues and costs are translated at the average exchange rates for the

year. Exchange differences on the translation of foreign operations arising from this method are classi-

fied in Equity.

The profit (loss) for the year and all other components of other comprehensive income are attributed to

the shareholders of the parent company and non-controlling interests, even if this entails that minority

interests have a negative balance. Where necessary, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are ad-

justed as appropriate in order to ensure compliance with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-Group

assets and liabilities, equity, revenues, costs and cash flows relating to transactions between Group

entities are fully eliminated during the consolidated process.

Changes in the percent interest in a subsidiary that do not entail a loss of control are accounted for using

the equity method.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in euro, the functional and presentation currency
adopted by the Parent Company. Each Group entity determines its own functional currency, which is used
to measure the items included in the individual financial statements. The Group adopts the direct con-
solidation method. The amount that arises from the use of this method is represented by the gain or loss
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss when a foreign subsidiary is disposed of.

The exchange rates used for translating financial statements denominated in currencies other than the
Euro are as follows:

2020 2019
Currency Average Exchange Rate Year-end Average Exchange Rate Year-end
Argentine Peso () 103.25 103.25 67.27 67.27
Australian Dollar 1.66 1.59 1.61 1.60
Brazilian Real 5.89 6.37 4.4 4.52
Canadian Dollar 1.53 1.56 1.49 1.46
Danish Krone 7.45 7.44 7.47 7.47
Pound Sterling 0.89 0.90 0.88 0.85
Indian Rupee 84.63 89.66 78.83 80.19
Japanese Yen 121.83 126.49 122.02 121.94
Swedish Krona 10.49 10.03 10.59 10.45
US Dollar 114 1.23 112 112

(*): Companies in hyperinflation; we applied average exchange rate, identical to the year-end exchange rate, pursuant to IAS 29
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5. Main principles used
for the preparation of the
Financial Statements

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are recognised in accordance with IFRS 3, using the acquisition method. The cost
of an acquisition is determined as the sum of the consideration transferred, measured at its acquisition
date fair value, and the amount of the minority interest in the acquiree. For each business combina-
tion, the Group determines whether to measure the minority interest in the acquiree at fair value or in
proportion to the minority interest share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed during the year and classified as administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it classifies or designates the financial assets acquired or the
liabilities assumed in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions and other relevant
conditions in effect at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be paid is recognised by the acquirer at its acquisition date fair value.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost, represented by the amount by which the sum of the considera-
tion paid and amount recognised for minority interests exceeds the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by the Group. If the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the consideration,
the difference (gain) is taken to the statement of profit or loss. Any ancillary costs related to the business
combination are recognised through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is not amortised, but measured at cost, net of cumulative impairment
losses. For impairment-testing purposes, the goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at
the acquisition date to each cash-generating unit of the Group that is expected to benefit from the syn-
ergies of the combination, regardless of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to the units concerned.

If goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit, and the entity disposes of part of the unit’s
assets, the goodwill associated with the asset disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
asset when determining the gain or loss on disposal. The goodwill associated with the asset disposed
of is determined on the basis of the values of the asset disposed of and the retained portion of the
cash-generating unit.

Investments in associates and
Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence means the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions but not to control them.

A Joint Venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are measured using the equity method.

Their goodwill is included in the accounting value of the investment and is not subject to a separate
impairment test.

Following the application of the equity method, the Group assesses whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment of its equity interest as the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying
amount of the said equity interest.

When the Group ceases to have a significant influence over the associate, it measures and recognises
the remaining investment at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the investment at
the date significant influence or joint control cease and the fair value of the remaining investment and
the consideration received is recognised through profit or loss.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and non-financial assets such as invest-

ment properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability;

or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances in question and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

- Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which
the entity can access at measurement date;

« Level 2 — Input other than quoted prices included in Level 1, directly or indirectly observable for the
asset or liability;

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the input data are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The fair value measurement is wholly classified in the same fair value hierarchy level in which the lowest

level input used for measurement is classified.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis,

the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such

as investment properties and unquoted financial assets, and for non-recurring measurement, such as

assets held for sale in discontinued operations. The Group is comprised of the heads of properties, ac-

quisitions and mergers, the head of risk management, chief finance officers and the managers of each

manufacturing unit.

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which

are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.

For this analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the

information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Group, in conjunction with the Group’s external appraisers, compares the change in the fair value of

each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

On an interim basis, the valuation results are presented to the Group’s Statutory Auditors and Independ-

ent Auditors. The presentation includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and assets and liabilities valued at fair value are

summarised in paragraph 10.21 of these Notes.
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Other intangible assets

The intangible assets acquired are recognised in accordance with IAS 38 — Intangible Assets where
the use of the assets is likely to give rise to future economic benefits and the cost of the asset may be
reliably determined.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expendi-
ture is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impair-
ment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation rates are
controlled every year and the changes are recognised through profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of an intangible asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset) is included in the statement
of profit or loss for the year when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are fully charged to the statement of profit or loss for the financial year
in which they are incurred. Development costs borne for a specific project are recognised as intangible
assets when the Group can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
- The intention to complete and use or sell the asset;

- How the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits;

- The availability of resources to complete the development;

- Its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
After initial recognition, development costs are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is
available for use. Development is amortised over the period of expected future benefit and amortisation
rates are recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment
annually.

Patents and licences

The costs of patent rights, concession rights, licences and other intangible assets are recognised as
assets only if they are capable of generating future economic benefits for the company. Such costs are
amortised according to their useful lives, where finite, or on the basis of their contractual term. Software
licences refer to the purchase cost of the licences and any external or internal personnel consultancy
costs required for development. They are expensed during the year in which the internal or external
costs relating to training of personnel and any other related costs are incurred.

The following table provides a summary of the amortisation rates applied to the Group’s intangible assets:

Capitalised research costs 3-7 years
Rights for industrial patents and rights for exploitation of intellectual property 3-5 years
Licences and similar rights 5 years

Other

3-5 years
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Land is recognised at historical cost less any impairment losses. Such
costincludes the cost, as incurred, of replacing part of the plant and equipment if the recognition criteria
are met.

Costs incurred after purchase are only capitalised if they increase the future economic benefits that may
be derived from the use of the asset. The costs of replacing identifiable components of complex assets
are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives; the residual carrying amount of the replaced
component is taken to the statement of profit or loss. Other costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Financial expenses incurred in respect of investments in assets for which a certain period of time is nor-
mally required before the asset is ready for use or sale (qualifying assets pursuant to IAS 23 — Borrowing
Costs) are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the class of assets to which they refer. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Ordinary maintenance and repair costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss of the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets,
based on the Group’s usage plans, which also take into account the estimated physical wear and tear
and technological obsolescence of the asset, as well as the presumable expected realisable value, net
of disposal costs.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment consists of multiple significant components with differ-
ent useful lives, depreciation is applied to each component.

The value to be depreciated is represented by the carrying amount, less the presumed net disposal
value at the end of its useful life, where material and reasonably determinable.

Land is not depreciated, even where purchased together with a building, nor are items of property, plant
and equipment held for sale, which are measured at the lesser of their initial recognition amount and
fair value, net of costs to sell.

The following depreciation rates are used:

Buildings 60 years
Buildings not used for business 80 years
Plant and machinery 10-30 years
Industrial equipment and moulds 3-10 years
Espresso machines and other commercial equipment 3-7 years
Furniture and fittings 8 years
Means of transport 8-12 years
Electronic machinery 5 years

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, and all initially recognised significant
components are derecognised when they are disposed of or no future economic benefit is expected
from their use or sale. The gain or loss that arises upon the derecognition of an asset (calculated as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the net consideration) is taken to the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment are revised
at each reporting date and, where appropriate, adjusted prospectively.
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Rights of use of third-party assets

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires and assessment of whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset (or specific assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or
assets). Such assessment is carried out on inception of the lease. Under IFRS 16, lease contracts are
accounted for by recognising in the statement of financial position a lease liability of a financial nature
representing the present value of future lease payments and recognising under assets the right of use
of the leased asset. At the commencement date, the right of use is recognised at cost and includes: the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the com-
mencement date, any initial direct costs incurred to sign the contract and the present value of estimated
costs to be incurred in dismantling the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset to the condi-
tion required by the terms and conditions of the lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently,
the right of use is depreciated over the lease term (or the useful life of the asset if shorter), subject to
any impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Impairment

Assets with an indefinite useful life, which are not amortised, are tested for impairment annually and
whenever circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may be impaired, as defined by IAS 36.
Assets that are amortised are tested for impairment only if circumstances indicate that their carrying
amount may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of goodwill acquired and allocated during the year is assessed at the end of the
period in which the acquisition and allocation occurred.

For the purposes of determining its recoverable amount, goodwill is allocated, at the acquisition date,
to a CGU (or group of CGUs) benefiting from the acquisition.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its selling price less costs of disposal and its value in use, that is the present value of expected
future cash flows, net of taxes, by applying a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment is initially accounted for by reduc-
ing the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group of CGUs) and only subsequently
to the other assets in the unit, in proportion to their carrying amount, up to the recoverable amount of
assets with finite useful lives. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds the re-
coverable amount. When an impairment of an asset other than goodwill subsequently ceases to exist or
decreases, the carrying amount of the CGU is written up to the new estimated recoverable amount. The
reversal cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset. The reversal is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial assets are classified, on a case-by-case basis, at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are meas-
ured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

A financial asset may be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, if it gen-
erates cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The entity's business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments);

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instru-
ments);

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments);

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows

and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and

are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecog-

nised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, a loan to an associate and a

loan to a director included under other non-current financial assets.
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Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are

met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and im-

pairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the

same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are

recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is recycled

to profit or loss.

The Group’s debt instruments at fair value through OCl includes investments in quoted debt instruments

included under other non-current financial assets.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity

instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity instruments

under IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised

as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, ex-

cept when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,

in which case, such gains are recognised in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI

are not tested for impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recogni-
tion at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

A derivative embedded in a non-derivative hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host,
is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embed-
ded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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Derecognition of a financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or
- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obliga-
tion to pay the received cash flows in full without delay to a third party, and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither trans-
ferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement whereby it retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

With regard to trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach for calcu-
lating ECLs. Therefore, instead of recognising the changes in credit risk, the Group recognises a write-
down provision based on ECLs outstanding at each reporting date.

The provision consists of a specific and a generic component. The specific component is determined
based on the following rules:

- Bad debts: write-down of 100%;

« Past-due by more than 365 days: write-down of 100%;

« Al FS clients with debts past-due by more than 180 days: write-down of 100%;

« Al FS clients with mixed positions: write-down of 50% of debts past-due by more than 180 days;

- All past-due debts by more than 90 days not included in the previous categories: write-down of 25%;
- Coffee Shop miscellaneous and past-due debts: ad-hoc write-down;

- Debts as indicated by the Credit Manager: ad-hoc write-down.

The generic component that does not fall in the above-mentioned categories is determined based on
trade receivables, excluding intercompany balances. With regard to these exposures, the outstanding
ECL is calculated on the basis of historical data.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, including directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchas-
ing or transferring them in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss only if
the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised or
following the amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition of a financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation underlying the liability is discharged or can-
celled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss for the year.

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Derivatives

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps
and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity
price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when

the fair value is negative.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment;

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transac-
tion or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment;

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge rela-

tionship to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy

for undertaking the hedge.

Beginning 1 January 2018, the documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the

hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging

relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge
ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). The hedging relationship qualifies for hedge
accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

- There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

- The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic rela-
tionship;

- The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the car-
rying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other expense.
For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method The EIR
amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases
to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative
changes in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an
asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the cash flow
hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The cash
flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and
the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.
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The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in planned
transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility
in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised as
other expense and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other oper-
ating income or expenses.

Beginning 1January 2018, the Group designates only the spot element of forward contracts as a hedging
instrument. The forward element is recognised in OCI and accumulated in a separate component.

The amounts accumulated in OCl are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged
transaction.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCl is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect
profit or loss.

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is account-
ed for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or
losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised as OCI
while any gains or losses relating to the remaining (ineffective) portion are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses
is transferred to the statement of profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as

follows:

- Raw materials: purchase cost on a weighted mean cost basis;

- Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manu-
facturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

The cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recog-

nised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions for impairment are calculated for materials, finished products, replacement parts and other

goods deemed obsolete or slow-moving, in view of their expected future use and realisable value.

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits comprise cash and demand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less, which are not subject to significant risks of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Cash and cash equivalents are recognised, depending
on their nature, at nominal value or at amortised cost.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares. Any difference between the car-
rying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised as share premium.

The Directors’ Single Report on Operations provides further information on this item.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance expense.
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Provisions for employee benefits

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit

credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (ex-

cluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately

in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through

OCl in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment

and

- The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest of the net asset or liability for defined benefits must be calculated by applying the discount

rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net

defined benefit obligation under cost of sales, administration expenses and selling and distribution

expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (by nature):

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements;

« Netinterest expense or income.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenues

Revenues are generated by the Group’s ordinary operations and include revenues from sales and the
provision of services. Revenues are recognised net of VAT, returns and discounts.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods and services is trans-
ferred to the customer for an amount that reflects the consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for such goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it acts as Principal for
the agreements that give rise to revenues, since it usually controls the goods and services before they
are transferred to the customer. When determining the price of the transaction for the sale of goods, the
Group considers the effects deriving from the presence of variable consideration, significant financing
components and non-monetary considerations. If the consideration promised in the contract includes
a variable amount, such as the amount related to a right of return, the Group estimates the amount of
the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods to the customer. The
process underlying the recognition of revenues follows the phases provided for by IFRS 15.

The transfer of control generally coincides with the shipment or delivery of the goods.

Service revenues are recognised in profit or loss when the services are completed, or on an ongoing
basis to the extent that the services in question have been rendered during the year.

Sales of machines

Revenues from the sale of coffee machines are recognised when the significant risks and rewards asso-
ciated with ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer, when it is likely that the consideration
will be recovered, the related costs or return, where applicable, may be reliably estimated and the
management ceases to carry out the level of ongoing activity typically associated with ownership of the
goods sold.

The transfer of the risks and rewards normally coincides with shipment to the client, which corresponds
with the moment of delivery of the goods to the carrier.

When recognising revenues, the Group verifies whether there are conditions that represent separate
services to which a share of the price of sale is to be attributed. Accordingly, sales revenues include the
effects of variable components, the existence of significant financial components, non-monetary consid-
eration and any consideration due to the client.

The Group typically provides warranties for the repair of defects existing at the time of sale, in accord-
ance with the law. These standard quality warranties are accounted for in accordance with IAS 37 — Pro-
visions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Please refer to the Note on warranties.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is rec-
ognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nom-
inal amounts and released to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the
asset.

Dividends

The Parent Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised and is
no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per applicable European corporate laws, a distribution
is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly
in equity.
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Income taxes

Current taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income.

This calculation is therefore carried out using all the elements and information available at the reporting
date, taking account of laws in force from time to time and also considering and including all the ele-
ments in the valuations that could give rise to uncertainties when determining the amounts payable to
the taxation authorities, as provided for by IFRIC 23.

Income taxes are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, except for those relating
to items debited or credited directly to an equity reserve; in these cases, the related tax effect is recog-
nised directly in the respective equity reserves.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- When the reversal of taxable temporary differences, linked to investments in subsidiaries and as-
sociates, can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and as-
sociates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available so that the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on current tax rates, or approved tax rates, or
rates that are substantively in force at the reporting date.
Deferred taxes relating to items recognised outside profit or loss are also recognised outside profit or
loss, thus in equity or in OCI consistently with the underlying element.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed good-
will) if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss if it was recognised
subsequently.
The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, it has a legally enforcea-
ble right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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6. New accounting standards

and interpretations issued by
the IASB

Other accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations applicable as at 1 January 2020

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (financial instruments):
Disclosures — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

On 15 January 2020, Regulation (EU) No. 2020/34 was issued to implement, at EU level, several amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39 - Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 - Financial instruments —
Disclosures.

The amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements and aim at providing relief from the effects
due to the uncertainty generated by the reform of interbank offered rates (IBORs).

The amendments also require the entities to disclose to their investors further information regarding their hedg-
ing relationships that are directly exposed to said uncertainties.

The adoption of these amendments did not impact the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2020.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

On 29 November 2019, Regulation EU No. 2019/2075 was issued to implement, at EU level, the new re-

vised version of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The main amendments with respect

to the 2010 version are:

- anew chapter on measurement;

- improved definitions and guidance, particularly with regard to the definition of liability;

- clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement un-
certainty.

A document updating the references to the Standards included in the aforementioned Conceptual

Framework was also published.

The adoption of these amendments did not impact the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 Decem-

ber 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Material

On 29 November 2019, Regulation (EU) No. 2019/2104 was issued to implement several amendments
to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

These amendments clarify the definition of ‘material’ and align the definition used in the Conceptual
Framework and the standards themselves. The definition of ‘material’, as revised by the amendments, is
as follows: “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”
The adoption of these amendments did not impact the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 Decem-
ber 2020.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations

On 21 April 2020, Regulation EU No. 2020/551 was issued to implement several amendments to
IFRS 3 — Business Combinations. These amendments clarify the definition of a ‘business’ and support
entities in determining whether they acquired a business or a group of assets. According to the new defi-
nition, a ‘business’ is: an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being conducted and
managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to customers, generating investment income
(such as dividends or interest) or generating other income from ordinary activities The amendments clar-
ify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs

The adoption of these amendments did not impact the Consolidated Financial Statements at
31 December 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

On 9 October 2020, Regulation (EU) No. 2020/1434 was issued to implement several amendments to
IFRS 16 aimed at simplifying lessees’ accounting of Covid-19-related rent concessions. The practical
expedient provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a rent concession is a lease
modification.

This practical expedient is only available for rent concessions directly related to Covid-19 and only if all
the conditions provided for in the amendments are met. Lessees that apply the exemption are required
to disclose that fact.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and may
be applied retrospectively Earlier application is permitted.

The adoption of these amendments had a positive effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements at
31 December 2020 amounting to €215 thousand and referring property leases.
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New accounting standards and interpretations issued by IASB but
not yet applicable

As at the date of preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements, the IASB had issued the
following new Standards and Interpretations not yet in effect:

Application mandatory as of

New Standards/ Interpretations endorsed by the EU but not yet effective

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts Deferral of

IFRS 9 01/01/2021
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate 01/01/2021
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
New Standards / Interpretations not yet effective and not yet endorsed by the EU
Amendments to: IFRS 3 Business Combinations; IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 37 01/01/2022
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets, Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities 01/01/2023
as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of the Financial Statements: Disclosure of Accounting Policies 01/01/2023
Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Standards, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition

. - 01/01/2023
Accounting Estimates
IFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts), including Amendments to IFRS 17 01/01/2023

The possible impacts on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the new Standards/Interpretations are
currently under assessment.
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7. Estimates and
assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements and related Notes requires management to make estimates
and assumptions based also on subjective judgements, past experience and hypotheses considered
reasonable and realistic in relation to the information known at the time of the estimate. Such estimates
have an effect on the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the amount of revenues and costs
during the reporting period.

The key assessment procedures and assumptions concerning the future used by the management in the
application of accounting processes and that can have significant effects on the items recognised in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or for which there is a risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are summarised below.

Due to the uncertainty associated with the unprecedented nature of the Covid-19-related situation, the
Group has carefully assessed and considered the pandemic’s impact on year-end data and provided,
where necessary, specific disclosure to take account of its effects on the profit or loss results.

A targeted analysis was carried out to identify, and consequently manage, the main risks and uncertain-
ties to which the Group is exposed.

In particular, all the significant assumptions and estimates underlying the preparation of the following
items have been examined and analysed in detail in order to identify and manage the uncertainties
linked to the unpredictability and potential impact of the pandemic: impairment of non-financial assets,
fair value valuation of financial instruments, valuation of expected credit losses, deferred tax assets and
tax relief, recognition of revenues, leases, provisions and onerous contracts.

The analysis conducted did not highlight any critical situations that cannot be addressed in the normal
course of business.

Where the analysis has not led to particular conclusions, additional specific information is provided in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, whilst no particular explanations are provided when
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic have had no specific impact on the Group’s financial performance,
financial position and cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less costs of disposing of the asset. The
calculation of the value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The estimate of future cash flows is
based on plans approved by the Board of Directors having a horizon of at least five years and is found-
ed on reasonable and sustainable assumptions, in keeping with the consistency between prospective
and historic cash flows. In addition, the cash flows do not include restructuring activities to which the
Group has not yet committed or significant future investments that will increase the results of the assets
making up the cash-generating unit being valued. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model, as well as to the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the
different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in paragraph 10.2.
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Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits and the present val-
ue of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed yearly.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
the directors refer to the interest rate on corporate bonds denominated in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the defined benefit obligations, rated AA or higher by internationally recognised rating
agencies, with average maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obliga-
tions. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are
excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not
represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortal-
ity tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases
and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further
details about pension obligations are provided in paragraph 10.16.

Fair value measurement of
financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial po-
sition cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Estimates include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition
date as part of the business combination. When the contingent consideration meets the definition of
derivative and is thus a financial liability, it is subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting
date. The determination of the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take
into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor (see
Notes 10.21 and 10.22 for details).

Development costs

The Group capitalises costs for product development projects. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a prod-
uct development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project manage-
ment model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. In the reporting year, the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was €3.1 million,
whereas those capitalised in the previous year amounted to €21.8 thousand.
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8. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Group manages its capital struc-
ture and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders

or issue new shares.

9. Reconciliation between
the Financial Statements of
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. and the
Consolidated Financial
Statements at

31 December 2020

Equity attributable to the

Profit (loss) for the year

Group attributable to the Group
:_t:il?;r:_inalztzelzi:ﬁpéAA.A—Pseparate financial statements based on 2,280,752 91.470
IFRS / IAS adjustments Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. 71,062 24,599
Luigi Lavazza S.p.A. - based on IFRS/IAS 2,351,814 116,069
Eg(f)irir;ziet)llaitfv;/r?:;s:z;carrying amount and the share of the (116,703) (6,891)
Elimination of dividends and results of equity investments (27,057)
Difference from consolidation for acquisitions 126,059 -
Other consolidation adjustments including intercompany profit (14,179) (9,775)
TOTAL 2,346,991 72,346

IFRS/IAS adjustments are mainly due to the measurement of industrial assets at fair value (deemed
cost) and the write-off of depreciation and amortisation of assets with finite useful lives;
Differences from consolidation for acquisitions mainly refer to the positive differences between the
consideration paid and net assets acquired following the new acquisitions and business combina-
tions and are chiefly recognised as goodwill in the Consolidated Financial Statements and not recog-
nised in the Financial Statements of the individual subsidiaries.
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Notes to the
Consolidated
Financial Statements

10. Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

10.1 Goodwill

the following table shows the item “Goodwill” at 31 December 2020 and its change in the reporting year:

Balance at 31.12.2019 956,845
Exchange delta and other changes (38,946)
Balance at 31.12.2020 917,899

The change in goodwill was chiefly attributable to the adjustment of goodwill denominated in foreign
currencies (in particular US Dollar and Canadian Dollar) to the year-end exchange rates.
The following table provides the breakdown of goodwill by CGU:

31.12.2019  Exchange rates 31.12.2020
CGU America 417153 (33,796) 383,357
CGU France 419,557 (235) 419,322
CGU ltaly 18,723 - 18,723
CGU Rest of Europe and Rest of the world 101,412 (4,915) 96,497

Total 956,845 (38,946) 917,899
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10.2 Other intangible assets

The following table shows the composition and movements of other intangible assets:

Balance at I © ) Reclassificati Exchange Consolidation Balance at
31.12.2019 nereases ecreases eclassilications delta area delta 31.12.2020
Gross value 11,081 3,144 (10) 14,214
(Write-down provision) (171) (171)
(Accumulated amortisation) (7,461) (1,802) (283) 6 (9,540)
Net value 3,450 (1,802) - 2,861 (4) 4,504
Gross value 22,446 2,484 (1,506) 2,943 26,367
(Write-down provision) -
(Accumulated amortisation) (3,579) (2,811) (298) 336 (104) (6,456)
Net value 18,867 (2,811) 2,186 (1170) 2,839 19,911
Gross value 189,967 1128 (7,961) 104 (493) 182,745
(Write-down provision) -
(Accumulated amortisation) (52,631) (10,430) 7,929 (109) 228 (55,014)
Net value 137,336 (9,303) (32) (5) (266) 127,730
Gross value 517,870 (2,363) (4,971) 8 510,544
(Write-down provision) (311,037) (311,037)
(Accumulated amortisation) (1,799) (1,776) 402 189 (3) (2,987)
Net value 205,034 (1,776) (1,962) (4,782) 5 196,520
Gross value 122,604 1,767 (5,474) 14,990 (4,194) 1 129,693
(Write-down provision) (23) 23 -
(Accumulated amortisation) (32,159) (14,943) 5,425 165 543 (40,969)
Net value 90,422 (13,175) (27) 15,155 (3,652) 88,723
Gross value 9,108 17,857 7 (18,080) 8,878
(Write-down provision) -
Net value 9,108 17,857 (7) (18,080) - 8,878
Gross value 873,077 20,752 (13,442) 278 (11,175) 2,951 872,442
(Write-down provision) (311,230) 23 (311,207)
(Accumulated amortisation) (97,629) (31,762) 13,354 (123) 1,302 (107) (114,966)
Net value 464,217 (11,009) (66) 155 (9,873) 2,844 446,268

The increases in other intangible assets and fixed assets in process mainly refer to new IT Information
Technology) investments made in the reporting year; the development of these investments was mainly
outsourced.

The reclassifications mainly concerned fixed assets in process and also entailed some transfers between
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

The consolidation area delta includes the recognition under industrial patents of the difference arising
from the consolidation of the interest acquired in Caffemotive S.r.l., amortised over a 12-year period.
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Impairment test of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives

The goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives acquired in business combinations (€917,899
thousand and €187,026 thousand, respectively) have been allocated to cash generating units for im-
pairment-testing purposes. Four cash generating units (CGUs) have been identified for this purpose
on a geographical basis: Italy, France, America, and Rest of Europe / Rest of World, in accordance with
management’s business governance and that also reflects CGUs’ geographical location.

The carrying amounts of the CGUs (coinciding with the value of net invested capital) have been tested for
recoverability by comparing them with their recoverable amounts, calculated as the net present value of
the future cash flows that are estimated to derive from ongoing use of the assets concerned ("value in
use"). At the end of the explicit forecast period, the cash flows based on the projected financial perfor-
mance up to 2025 were used to estimate a terminal value equal to the value of the cash flows at the end
of the explicit period to reflect the value of the CGUs beyond the plan period on a going-concern basis.
The main assumptions adopted in determining the value in use are set out below for the CGUs to which
the disclosure refers.

CGU WACC grate
Italy 6.5% 0.5%
France 5.7% 1.1%
America 6.2% 1.8%
Rest of the world 7.2% 1.8%

The discount rate was calculated as the average cost of capital (WACC) in Euro, according to a post-tax
configuration, based on the weighted average cost of capital, calculated on the basis of the CAPM (Cap-
ital Asset Pricing Model) and the Group's borrowing costs.

As required by IAS 36, this rate was determined by reference to industry's operating risk level and the
financial structure of a set of listed companies comparable to the Group in terms of risk profile and busi-
ness sector. The discount rate applied has been calculated to reflect the risk in the geographical areas
in which the Group operates, taking the breakdown of EBITDA in the final year of the explicit forecast
period (2021) as the WACC weighting factor for each geographical area. In particular, the calculation
takes account of the following elements:

- The risk-free rate: considering the country risk represented by CDSs for each areg;

- The unlevered beta defined by geographical area;

- The market risk premium: market data.

The test carried out did not identify any need for impairment with regard to the carrying amount, good-
will and other assets with indefinite life. The value of use of CGUs, calculated as described above,
exceeded their carrying amount.

The Group has also conducted various analyses of the sensitivity of the test results to changes in the
underlying assumptions conditioning the value in use of the cash generating units (discount rate, WACC,
g growth rate and long-term margins). The elaboration of alternative scenarios which foresee a delay in
the recovery, reflecting the current level of uncertainty about future economic prospects attributable to
the Covid-19 pandemic, highlighted the presence of headroom for all the CGUs.
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Rights of use totalled €169,600 and refer for €169,352 to contracts for property, plant and equipment and
for €248 thousand to the item right-of-use intangible assets, namely right-of-use software.
The breakdown and movements of rights of use of property, plant and equipment are shown in the following

tables:
Balanceat | Exchange Consolidation Balance at
Incr (Dcu )

31.12.2019 delta areadelta 31.12.2020
Gross value 52,400 12,071 (600) (1,334) 62,537
(Write-down provision) - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (6,302) (6,691) 615 149 (12,228)
Net value 46,098 5,381 15 (1,185) - 50,309
Gross value 115,844 - - - 115,844

(Write-down provision) - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (9,008) (3,510) - - (12,518)
Net value 106,836 (3,510) - - - 103,325
Gross value 1,828 5,776 (264) (13) - 1,327

(Write-down provision) - - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (518) (836) 248 7 - (1,100)
Net value 1,310 4,940 (16) (6) - 6,228
Gross value 376 - - - - 376
(Write-down provision) - - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (61) (79) - - (141)
Net value 315 (79) - - 236
Gross value 11,764 8,377 (3,927) (19) - 16,096
(Write-down provision) - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (4,462) (5,518) 3,033 32 (6,915)
Net value 7,302 2,860 (894) (87) 9,181
Gross value 269 6 8) 267
(Write-down provision) -
(Accumulated depreciation) (109) (109) 4 - (215)
Net value 160 (103) (5) - 52
Gross value 8 26 (2) (1 32
(Write-down provision) - - - .
(Accumulated depreciation) @ @ 2 1 - (1)
Net value 1 19 - - 21
Gross value 182,490 26,257 (4,801) (1,467) - 202,480

(Write-down provision) - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (20,467) (16,751) 3,901 188 - (33,128)
Net value 162,023 9,506 (899) (1,278) - 169,352
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The increases for the period mainly refer to properties used for commercial purposes, industrial equip-
ment and vehicles used by employees.

The decreases for the period chiefly relate to properties for which the operating lease contract expired
in the year and vehicles used by employees.

Rights of use for leased buildings include the former IAS 17-compliant finance lease of the Nuvola Head-
quarters.

The effects associated with lease contracts falling within IFRS 16 on the statement of profit or loss are
shown in the following table:

Year 2020 Year 2019
Amortisation and depreciation (16,872) (15,058)
Interest (3,710) (3,737)
Lease costs for short-term and low value contracts (4,902) (5,629)

The effects on cash flows shown in the statement of cash flows indicate a net use of cash to pay for
rights of use totalling €17 million for the reporting year.

It should be noted that the Group opted to apply the exemptions provided for in the Standard for lease
contracts with a term equal or below 12 months and with no purchase options (“short-term leases”) and
for lease contracts whose underlying assets has a low value (“low value asset”). The Group also applies
the practical expedient available for rent concessions granted by lessors that are directly related to the
Covid-19 pandemic.
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10.4 Property, plant and equipment

The breakdown and movements of property, plant and equipment are shown in the following table:

Balance at Increases (Decreases) Reclassifications Exchange Consolidation Balance at
31.12.2019 delta areadelta 31.12.2020
Gross value 231,930 397 (676) (14,192) (3,998) - 213,461
(Write-down provision) (11,672) (3,046) 1,596 1,581 65 - (11,476)
(Accumulated depreciation) (83,467) (5,619) 476 12,149 831 - (75,629)
Net value 136,791 (8,268) 1,396 (463) (3,101) - 126,355
Gross value 819,184 3,896 (11,386) 51,067 (4,490) 855 859,127
(Write-down provision) (7,808) (3,063) 1,892 125 - (8,853)
(Accumulated depreciation) (535,100) (32,715) 7,347 392 1,671 (250) (558,654)
Net value 276,276 (31,882) (2,147) 51,460 (2,693) 606 291,620
Gross value 51,867 3,101 (53) 202 7 - 55,110
(Write-down provision) (3,377 - - - (3,377)
(Accumulated depreciation) (40,393) (3,137) 15 4 - (43,511)
Net value 8,097 (36) (38) 202 (3) - 8,221
Gross value 338,604 41,707 (19,444) 49 (7,892) 343 353,368
(Write-down provision) (3,432) (41) 399 2 - (3,442)
(Accumulated depreciation) (210,805) (48,579) 15,988 37 5,536 - (237,824)
Net value 124,367 (7,282) (3,058) 86 (2,354) 343 112,103
Gross value 40,51 1,073 (568) 1,351 (573) 3 41,797
(Write-down provision) (113) (7) 1 - (120)
(Accumulated depreciation) (27,635) (2,604) 510 (77) 37N (2) (29,436)
Net value 12,762 (1,538) (58) 1,274 (201) 1 12,241
Means of transport
Gross value 1,238 5 (23) (9) - 1,212
(Write-down provision) - - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (932) (61) 19 7 - (967)
Net value 306 (56) (4) (2) - 244
Gross value 35,158 1,624 (1,616) 3,714 (734) 5 38,151
(Write-down provision) - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (27,066) (3,737) 1,524 (78) 37N (4) (28,990)
Net value 8,091 (2,113) (91) 3,636 (363) 1 9,161
Gross value 2,862 8 (131) (219) - 2,521
(Write-down provision) - - - -
(Accumulated depreciation) (2,761) (73) 17 6 204 - (2,508)
Net value 101 (65) (14) (15) - 13
Gross value 44,373 42,983 1) (60,280) (491) - 26,574
(Write-down provision) (1,148) (200) 774 44 - (530)
Net value 43,225 42,784 (11) (59,506) (447) - 26,044
Gross value 1,565,727 94,794 (33,907) (18,089) (18,411) 1,206 1,591,320
(Write-down provision) (27,550) (6,726) 3,887 2,355 237 - (27,798)
(Accumulated depreciation) (928,159) (96,524) 25,995 12,429 8,994 (255) (977,519)
Net value 610,018 (8,456) (4,025) (3,305) (9,180) 951 586,002
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The change in property, plant and equipment was mainly due to the new industrial investments and
purchases of machines intended for FOL, offset by depreciation for the year.

The reclassifications include the start of operation of some property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets referring to projects completed in the reporting year, as well as the reclassification to assets held
for sale of a property located in Turin to be sold next year.

The value of this property, restated and adjusted to fair value, amounted to €3,150 thousand.

10.5 Investments

Investments recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

% held 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 Changes
Investments measured at cost:
a) Subsidiaries
Lavazza Maroc S.a.r.l. 100 1 1 -
Lavazza Trading (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd 100 1,000 1,000 -
Total subsidiaries 1,001 1,001 -
b) Investments in Joint Ventures
Manufacture de Café 50 625 625
Y&L Coffee Limited 35 4,894 4,894
Total investments in joint ventures 5,519 5,519
c) Associates
International Coffee Partners G.m.b.H. 20 25 25 -
Total associates 25 25 -
d) Other companies
Casa del Commercio e del Turismo S.p.A. 3 6 6 -
Air Vallée S.p.A. 2 - 26 (26)
Idroelettrica S.c.r.l. - -
Tamburi Investment Partners S.p.A. 3,445 4,774 (1,329)
Clubitaly S.p.A. 6,409 6,201 208
Connect Ventures One L.p. 3 1,335 1,284 51
Immobiliare 3 F (formerly Le Foyer du Fonctionnaire) n.a. - -
Consorzio Nazionale Imballaggi (Conai) n.a. - -
Companies valued at FV through profit or loss 11,195 12,291 (1,096)
INV. A.G. S.r.l. " 6,394 10,915 (4,521)
Companies valued at FV through OCI 6,394 10,915 (4,521)
Total other companies 17,589 23,206 (5,617)
Total 24134 24,232 (98)

In the reporting year, the Group finalised two investments that were classified as joint ventures and

consolidated using the equity method:

- Y&L Coffee Limited, a 35%-owned Chinese company incorporated in the year with an initial invest-
ment of €6.2 million made by the Group and adjusted at year-end to account for the value of the
portion of equity attributable to the Group (€4.9 million), recognising a loss of €0.9 million;

- Manufacture de Café, a 50.01%-owned French company, acquired at year-end for a value of €625
thousand.

During the year, 200,000 shares in Tamburi Investment Partners S.p.A. were disposed of, for a total book

value of €1.4 million, generating a capital loss of €89 thousand. At the end of the year, the investment

was adjusted to fair value, recognising a positive effect of €35 thousand.

The decline in the investment in INV. A.G. S.r.l. was attributable to its fair value (FV) adjustment.

The Group received no dividends from its investees.
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The breakdown of investments in other companies is reported below:

INV. A.G. (investment measured at FV through OCI)

1 January 2019 5,383
Sales

Purchases

Total profit and losses recognised through OCI 5,532
31 December 2019 10,915
Sales

Purchases

Total profit and losses recognised through OCI (4,521)
31 December 2020 6,394

Other investments valued at FV through profit or loss

1 January 2019 15,262
Sales (3,875)
Purchases

Total profit and losses recognised through profit or loss 904
31 December 2019 12,291
Sales (1,417)
Purchases 208
Total profit and losses recognised through profit or loss 113
31 December 2020 11,195

Notes 10.19 and 10.20 provide further information in this regard.
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10.6 Non-current and current financial assets

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 Changes
Finance lease and other minor receivables 5,273 6,774 (1,501)
Financial trade receivables 18,762 23,238 (4,476)
Write-down provision for doubtful financial trade receivables (3,262) (1,351) (1,911)
Total non-current financial receivables 20,773 28,661 (7,888)
Mutual funds and other non-current securities 2,067 2,827 (760)
Insurance policies 18,288 18,112 176
Derivatives and other hedging instruments 4,879 3,47 1,408
Non-current securities and non-current financial instruments 25,234 24,410 824
TOTAL NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 46,007 53,071 (7,064)

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 Changes
Financial receivables from others 91,187 8,231 82,956
Financial trade receivables 31,514 27,670 3,844
Write-down provision for doubtful financial trade receivables (4,779) (4,827) 48
Financial receivables from companies controlled by the Parent Company 70,037 70,014 23
Total current financial receivables 187,959 101,088 86,871
Derivatives and other hedging financial instruments 27,745 24,222 3,523
Equity securities 7,730 - 7,730
Bonds 168,709 82,814 85,895
Certificates of deposit - - -
Mutual investment funds 552 - 552
Other current securities 17 24 7
Total current securities and current financial instruments 204,753 107,060 97,693
TOTAL CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 392,712 208,148 184,564

Financial receivables

Finance lease receivables refer to the sale through finance lease contracts of some specific coffee ma-
chines to customers within the OCS sector. As a finance lease transaction, in addition to recognition of
the receivable, it entails the booking of interest income among finance income and expense. During the
year, the receivable was written down by €1.9 million to bring it into line with its presumable realisable

value.

Financial trade receivables refer to loans granted by the subsidiary Cofincaf S.p.A. to customers and are
tested to verify the recoverability of their value pursuant to IFRS 9. On the basis of the analyses carried
out, the value of financial trade receivables was adjusted to bring it into line with the presumable real-

isable value, as reported below:

Provision for the write-down of financial trade receivables

Balance at 31.12.2019 (6,178)
Provisions (2,019)
Uses 155
Reclassifications -
Exchange rate delta -
Balance at al 31.12.2020 (8,041)

The increas